AlA New Zealand Limited

(formerly Sovereign Assurance Company Limited)

and Subsidiary Companies

Directors' Report

The Directors have pleasure in presenting the Annual Report of AIA New Zealand Limited and its subsidiaries for the
year ended 31 December 2018.

The Shareholder of the company has agreed to take advantage of the reporting concessions available to it under
section 211(3) of the Companies Act 1993. Accordingly, there is no further information to be provided in this Annual
Report other than the financial statements, auditor's report and appointed actuary's report.

For and on behalf of the Board
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Corporate Governance

The Board places great imporiance on the governance of AIA New Zealand Limited (AlA NZ), formerly Sovereign Assurance Company
Limited (SACL) and its subsidianes (together, the Group). Performance and comphance are both essential for good governance.

Reviews of the Board's performance and s policies and practices are carried out reguiarly. These reviews identify where improvements can
be made and assess the guality and effectiveness of the industry and company information made available to directors,

The principal features of AlA NZ's corporate governance are:

- & separate Board Audit and Risk Committee (the BARC). All non-executive directors are members of the BARC and the
chairperson of the BARC must be an independent director other than the chairperson of the Board,

- the Chief Executive Officer does not particinate in deliberations of aither the Board or the Board Remuneration
Committes (BREM) affecting his position, remuneration or performance; and

- there are established criteria for the appoiniment of new directors and external consuliants are engagad in the search for
new independent directors.

The guidelines for hcensed insurers issued by the Reserve Bank of New Zealand (RBNZ) reccmmend that:
- the Board will have a minimum of two directors;
- the Chalrperson will be an independent, non-executive director;
+ alleast two direciors will be ordinarily resident in New Zealand; and

+ at teast half of the directors will be independent.

The Board satisfies these requirements,

New directors are nvited to parbicipate in an induction programme. All directors regularly consider 1ssues, trends and challenges relevant to
the Group, the financial services industry and the economy.

The Board has adopted a charter and code of ethies for directors. The philosophy underlying the Board's approach to corporate governance
15 consistent with the ethical standards required of all employees of the Group.

The Group has mplemented and comphes with a fit and proper pohcy and process in relabion to determining the appropnateness of s
directors and relevant officers.

Non-executive diracters do not participate in any of the Group's incantive pians.

The current chairperson of the Board 15 Theresa Gattung. The other directors are Damien Mu, William Lisle, Nicholas Stanhope, Robert
McDonaid and Tracey Cross {appointed on 27 August 2819). Elizabeth Flynn resigned on 31 December 2019,

Committees of the Board

The Board has delegated specific powers and respensibilities to committees of the Board and te management. Key decisions made by the
Board commitiees are reported to the full Board Management recommends key decisions to the Board for approval.

There are two permanent Board committees, being the BARC and the BREM. Both committees have their own charters. Other committees
may he formed to carry out specific delegated tasks when required. An independent director chars each commuttee.

Board committees have the following membership:
« The BARC comprised of, Robert McDonaid, Theresa Gattung and Tracey Cross.
- The BREM comprised of: Therasa Gattung, Tracey Cross and Damien Mu,

Board Audlt and Risk Commlttee (BARC)
The role of the BARC 5 to:

1. Assist the Beard in discharging its responsibility to exercise due care, diligence and skill in relaticn to financial reporting and control,
conformance with legal requirements affecting the Group, the identificabion and prudent management of the risks to which the Group s
or may became subject, and the good governance of the Group in relgtion to those matters, mcluding the oversight of:

+ tha integrity of external financial reporting,

« financiai management;

internat control systems;

+ accounting policy and praclice;

» the risk management framework and monitoring compliance with that framework;

s related party transactions,

» compliance with spplicable laws and standards; and

- without Himiting the generality of the forgoing, compliance with RBNZ standards refating to external financiat reporting,

AlA New Zealand Limited and Subsidiaries



Corporate Governance (continvea)

Ensure the quality, credibibty and objactivity of the accounting process, financial reporting and reguilatory disciosure.

Oversee and momitor the performance of the internal and external auditors, The BARC has approved an Externa!l Audtor Services Policy,
That policy reistes to the engagement of the external audit firm for non-audit work, The objective of the policy is te avoid prejudice to
the independence of the auditor and prevent undue reliance by the auditor on revenue from the Group. The policy ensures the auditor
does not:

+assume the role of management;

« become an advocate for their own client; or

- audit work that comprises a direct output of their own professional expertise.
Under the policy the auditor wili not provide the following services:
+ hookkeening or services refating [o accounting records;

- financial inforrmation systems design and implementation,

+ appraisal or valuation and fairness opinions;

+ actuarial advisory services;

- internal audit outsourcing services;

- advice on deal structuring and related documentation;

«+ tax planning and strategic services,

+acting as a broker-dealer, promoter or underwriter;

- legal services, or

- execulive recruitrnent or extensive hurnan resource function,

4. Provide a structured reporbing line for internal audit and ensure the objectivity and independence of internal audit. The Head of Internal
Audit (AU and NZ) reperls to the BARC through its charperson.

5. Consider any AlA pelicy relevant to the rele of the BARC and, if deemed appropriate, edopt or recommend that the Board adopt (as
applicable) the policy as a policy of the Group.

6. Act as aformal forum for free and open cammunication between the Board, the internal and external auditors, and management.
7. Deal with any ofher matter which the Board may from time to time delegate to the BARC.
Board Remuneration Commlttee (BREM)
The role of the BREM 1s to assist the Board in discharging its responsibilities in relation to:
- the selection, remuneralion, education and evaluation of directors;
+ the selection, remuneration and evaiuation of managament; and
+ policies relating to diversity for the Board and management.

Executives are rewarded with a mix of fixed remuneration and incentives. Total remuneration is intended to be market competitive when
compared against similar roles at peer organisations; as well as reflecting position responsibilities, individual competencies, experience and
performance.

Executives' incentive remuneration is based on a set of clear cbjectives that will drive sustainable performance. The objectives;
- reflect the Group's strategic priorities;
. are based on both financial and non-financial measures that are set at the beginning of the performance period; and
+ discourage excessive risk taking,

Directors and Offlcers' Liability Insurance
The Group has effected liability insurance for its directors and officers.

Diversity and Inciusion
The Group is committed to diversity and inclusion across its business. The Group's diversity and inclusion priorities are designed to ensure
that:

. the Group's workforce and leadership is reflective of both the cornmunities in which the Group operates and its customer base; and

the Group has a culture in which diversity 15 encouraged, understood, respected, valued and leveraged so that talented people can
thrive and the Group's customers and reputation both benefit,

The Group's diversity and inclusion priorities are:
+ diversity in leadership;
- inclusive culture; and

© YOU can be you

As at 31 December 2019, 48% of all senior leadership roles and above {permanent and fullbme roles of the Execulive Leadership Team and
their direct reports) were held by wormen. The Group has a target that 50% of ali senior leadership roles and above will be held by women by
2020.

Talent sourcing processes have been reviewed fo ensure that support 1s given to the diversity and inclusion priorities.

AlA New Zealand Limited and Subsidiaries



Income Statement

12 months to 6 months to
| B R e e e Bde e B T : VR e e P ./ 31 December - 31 December

Revenue

Premium revenue 4 T4 364

Less: Retnsurance expense 4 (352) (77)
Net Premium Revenue 389 187

investment revenue 5 243 4

Other revenue 5 17 8

Relnsurance commission revenue 6 50 750

Total Operating Revenue 699 G49

Expenses

Claims expense 7 411 224

L.ess: Reinsurance recoveries 7 (165) (89)
Net Clalms Expense 246 135

Cther operating expenses g8 378 164
Life insurance contract habilities - (decrease)/increase 18 (8O} 638

Life mvestment contract hiabiidies - increase/(decrease) 18 119 {23}
Total Expenses 663 S14
Net Proflt before Taxatlon 38 35

Taxation expense 1 31 25

Net Profit after Taxation 3 5 iC

Statement of Comprehensive Income

12 months te 6 months to
31 December 31December

$ millions ' 2019 2018

Net Profit after Taxation 5 10

Total other comprehensive Income/(expense), net of taxation

Total comprehensive Income 5 10

These statements are to be read in conjunction with the notes on pages 8 to 44 and the Independent Auditor's Report from pages 45 to 46

AlA New Zealand Limuted and Subsidiaries 3



Statement of Changes m Eqwty

SR o i Total:
Atk I Contributed' _Retaln d _Sharaho[dor‘s
$ millions: . . Capltal” - Earnings .. Equity’
For the year ended 31 December 2019
Balance at 1 January 2019 540 (245) 295
Adustment from the adoption of IFRS 16 1 - 3
Net Profit after taxation - 5
Total comprehensive income for the year ended 31 December 2019 - 8 8
Batance as at 31 December 2019 540 (237 aga
For the six months ended 31 December 2018
Balance at 1 July 2018 540 205 745
Net profit after taxation - 10 10
Total comprehensive income for the six months ended 31 December 2018 - 10 10
Ordinary dividend paid 21 - (460) {460)
Balance as at 31 December 2018 540 { 245) 295

These statemenis are to be read in conjunchion with the notes on pages 8 to 44 and the Independent Auditor's Repert from pages 45 to 46,

AlA New Zealand Limited and Subsidiaries
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Statement of Financial Position

S millions
As at 31 December

Assets

Cash and cash equivalents

Trade and other receivables
Investments

Derivative assets

Liabilities ceded under reinsurance
Current taxation asset

Plant and equipment

Right-of-use assets

Intangible assets

Retirement benefit surplus

Total assets

Liabilities

Trade and other payables

Liabilities arising from reinsurance contracts
Life investment contract liabilities

Life insurance contract liabilities

Lease liabilities

Deferred taxation liability

Total liabilities

Shareholder's Equity
Contributed capital
Retained earnings

Total shareholder's equity

Total liabilities and shareholder's equity

The Board of Directors authorised these financial statements for issue on 17 March 2020.

Director

Note

2019 2018
308 359
109 102

1,856 1,821
9 2
43 33
19 7
15 14

28
25 19
2 1
2,414 2,358
167 134
668 708
678 646
(4) 26

29
573 549
2.1 2,063
540 540
(237) (245)
303 295
2,414 2,358

These statements are to be read in conjunction with the notes on pages 8 to 44 and the Independent Auditor's Report from pages 45 to 46.

H ]

pwec
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S millions
Cash flows from operating activities
Cash was provided from:

Premium and deposit premium receipts

Dwvidend receipts

interest receipts

Reinsurance receipts
Management fees and commission receipls

Cash was applied to:
Claims, surrenders and maturities payments
Commission payments
Payments to suppliers and employees
Interest payments
Tax payments
Reinsurance premiums

Net cash flows from operating activitles

Cash flows from investing activities
Cash was provided from:
Proceeds from sale of investments
Proceeds from sale of intangible assets

Cash was applied to:
Purchase of secunties
Purchase of plant and equipment
Purchase and development of intangible assets
Nel settiement of foreign exchange contracts

Net cash flows from Investing actlvities

Cash flows from financing activitles
Cash was applied to:

Dividends paid

Repayment of Lease Liabilities
Net cash flows from financing activitles

Summary of movements in cash flows
Net decrease in cash and cash eguivalents

Add: cash and cash equivalents at beginning of period

Cash and cash equivaients at end of period

Statement of Cash Flows

- Gmonthsto
© . 31 December
L

757 an
g i
52 27
215 798
- 1
1,033 1,204
500 270
155 74
182 80
1
20 9
350 153
1,208 586
(175) 518
457 241
2 =
459 241
310 495
4 -
9 5
8 1
331 501
128 {260)
b 460
4 -
(4} (460}
(51 {102)
359 461
308 359

These statements are to be read m conjunction with the notes on pages 8 to 44 and the Independent Auditor's Report from pages 45 to 46.

Al

Dwe
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Statement of Cash Flows (continued)

$ millions

Reconclliatlon of net profit after taxation to net cash flows froem operating activities

Net Profit after taxation

Non-cash Items included In net profit after taxation
Gain on disposal of intangible assets
Amortisation and depreciation
Net realised and unrealised gains
Non-cash dividends received
(Decrease)/increase in life insurance contract labilities recognised in the Income Statement
increase/(decrease) In hfe investment contract ligbilities recogrused in the income Statement

Movements In assets and llablllties

Trade and other recetvables - increase

Net income tax hab:lity - increase

Trade and other payables - increase

Decrease in ife nvestment contract habilidies recognised in the Statement of Financial Position
Net cash flows from ocperating actlvitles

12 months to
31 December

6 months to

-_31 December

‘2019 2018
5 10
2) .

f 2
(178) 33
(5) (3
(80) 638
19 {23)
{3) {an

1 16
34 27
(87) {41
(175) 618

These statements are to be read in conunction with the notes on pages 8 to 44 and the independent Auditor's Report from pages 45 to 46,

AlA New Zealand Limited and Subsiciaries
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Notes to the Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2019
1 Statement of Significant Accounting Policies
General Accounting Pollcles

AlA New Zealand Limited (AlA NZ) [formerly Sovereign Assurance Company Limited (SACL) is registered under the Companies Act
1993 and is domiciled and incorporated in New Zealand. The financial statements presented are those for AlA NZ and its subsidiaries
{together, the Group). AIA NZ is 100% owned by AlA Sovereign Limited. The ultimate parent s AIA Group Limited (AlA), @ company
listed on the Hong Kong Stack Exchange. AIA NZ's registered office 1s 74 Taharoto Road, Takapuna, Auckland, 0622. AlA NZ's and the
Group's principal areas of business are life insurance and investment management.

On 21 Septerber 2017, Commonwealth Bank of Australia (CBA) announced the sale of 100% of its ife msurance businesses in Ausiraha
and New Zealand, of which SACL was a part. to AlA International Limited, a subsidiary of AjA, The New Zealand sale completed on 2
July 2018, Accordingly, SACL 1s now a part of the AlA Group at the reporting date and these financial statements are presented an this
basis.

The balance date was changed in the prior year from 30 June te 31 Decamber to align the reporting period with AIA. As a result, these
audited financial staternents are for a bwelve-manth period ended 31 Decernber 2019 (‘'the year?), whereas the comparative period
presented is for & six (5) month period ended 31 Decernber 2013 (‘the period’). Therefore, the current and prior period presented are
not entirely comparable. Hereafter, the Group will repart its results with respect te a 31 December financial year end.

On 2 August 2019, legal enlity narmes of the Sovereign businesses were changed Lo reflect AlA branding, with Sgvereign Assurance
Company Limited being renamed AIA New Zealand Limited, and Sovereign Services Limited becoming AlA Services New Zealand
Lirnited, On 5 August 2019, the Group launched a single market offering under the banner of AlA Living, integraling with the AlA Vitality
product release. AIA Living products are underwritten oy AIA NZ. Existing business continues within either AlA International Limited
New Zealand Branch (the Branch), or the renamed AIA NZ,

AIA N7 1s & reporting entity under the Financial Markets Conduct Act 2013, The financial statemnents have been prepared in accordance
with the Financial Markets Conduct Act 2013,

The financial statements of the Group have been prepared in accordance with Generally Accepted Accounting Practice in New Zealand
(NZ GAAP). They comply with International Financial Repeorting Standards (IFRS) and the New Zealand Equivalents to International
Financial Reparting Standards (NZ IFRS), other New Zealand accounting standards and autheritative notices that are applicable to
entities that apply NZ IFRS, as appropriate for for-profit entities.

Comparative information has been reclassified to ensure consistency with presentation in the current reporting period. These
reclassifications have no impact on net profit after taxation.

Accountlng Standard adopted In the current year

NZ IFRS 16 Leases replaces the current guidance in NZ 1AS 17 Leases. Under NZ IFRS 18, a contract 15, or contains, a lease 1f the contract
conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for & period of bme in exchange for consideration. NZ IFRS 16 requires a
lessee to recognise & lease hability reflecting future lease payments and a ‘right-cf-use (ROU) asset’ for virtually all lease contracts.
Included is an optional exemption for certain short-term leases and leases of low-value assets: however, this exemption can only be
applied by lessees. This standard is effective for reporting periods beginning on or after 1 January 2019 and has heen applied for the
first time in these financial statements.

NZ IFRS 16 prescrives two transitional methods for lessees to implement the new standard. Under the full retrospective approach,
lessees must restate comparative information. Under the cumutative catch up approach, lessees do not need to restate comparative
information, but are required to adjust the opening value of equity for the accumulative effect of mnitially applying NZ IFRS 16 at the
initial date of application. The Group has adopted the cumulative cateh up approach in alignment with AlA,

Adoption of this standard changes the accounting for the Group's operating leases and the recogrition, measurement and presentation
of certain amounts recogrised in the Statement of Financial Position, Income Staternent and Statement of Cash Flows. As disclosed in
the note 26. as at 31 December 2018 the Group had commitments of $32m classified as operating leases relating to the lease of
premises and vehicles. As a result of adopting NZ IFRS 16, at 1 January 2019, the Group recognised $33m of right-of-use (ROU) asset
with an offsetting liability n the statement of financial postion. Further, approximately $6m of rental operaiing expenses was
reclassified to lease interest expense and lease depreciation expense during the current year.

Accountlng Standard approved but not yet effective

NZ IFRS 17 Insurance Contracts establishes principles for the recognition, measurament, presentation and disclosure of insurance
contracts, I June 2019, the International Accounting Standard Board published Exposure Draft ED/2015/4 Amendments to IRFS 17,
which deferrad the effective date of IFRS 17 by one year to annual reperting periods beginning on or after 1 January 2022. The Group
continues work on its IFRS 17 adoption project. The project includes investrent; actuarial; financial accounting and enabling technology
work streams. The project utitises technical specialists and rescurces from within New Zealand and the global AIA Group. The project is
progressing In line with agreed milestones and is expected to deliver IFRS 17 comphiant technology solutions; cperaticnal processes and
reporting outcomes ahead of mandatory implementation dates.

There are no other new or revised standards issued that are not yet effective and that are expected to have a matenal impact on the
Group in the current or future reporting periods or on foreseeable future transactions.

Basls of Preparatlon

The measuremeant base adopted is historical cost, modified by the fair value measurement of financial instruments, including derivative
contracts, at fair value through the Income Statement. The accounting policies adopted are consistent with those of the previous m‘%
financial year, except as noted above.

AlA New Zealand Limited and Subsidiaries 8



Notes to the Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2019
1 Statement of Significant Accounting Pollcies (continued)
Critical Accounting Estimates and Judgements

Preparation of financial statements requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the amounts reported in the
financial statements and accompanying notes. The Group makes esbimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets,
labihities, revenue and expenses. All estimates are based on management's knowledge of current facts and circumstances, assumptions
based on thal knowledge and predictions of future events and actions. Actual resuits can always differ from those estimates, possibly
significantly.

The areas where a high degree of jJudgement is appled by management, that have the most sigruficant effect on amounts recognised in
the financiat statements are the valuation of: financial mstruments {refer notes 1(f) and 28), Iife insurance contract liabilities and life
investment contract labilities (refer notes i(k} and 18), intangible assets (refer notes 1th} and 15) and deferred taxation habiliy (refer
notes 10} and 19). Uncertainties exist with respect to the interpretation of complex tax regulations for ife insurance actavibies. Given the
complexity of Iife insurance tax legisiation and the assumptions invoived, adjustments to mcome tax expense in future perods may be
required,

items thal are considered particularly sensifive to changes in estimates and assumptions are those which relate to product
classification, insurance contract liabilities, deferred acquisition and origination costs, llability adeguacy testing, far value measurement,
impairment of financial assets and impairment of goadwill and cther intangible assets.

FProguct Classification

The Group ssues contracts that transfer insurance risk or financial risk or both, Insurance contracts are those contracts that transfer
significant insurance sk, while investment contracts are those contracts without significant insurance risk. The Group exercises
significant judgement o determine whether there 15 a scenario (other than those lacking commercial substance) in which an msured
event would require the Group to pay significant addifional benefits to its customers. in the event the Group must pay significant
additional benefits to its custemers, the contract is accounted for as an msurance contract. The judgements exercised in determuning
the level of insurance risk in product classification affect the amounts recogrised in the financial statements as insurance and
mvestment contract habilities and deferred acguisition and origination costs, The accounting policy on product ciassification is described
in note k).

Insurance Coniract Ligbilities

For contracts with an expiicit account balance, such as universal life and unit-inked contracts, insurance contract habilities represent the
accumultabion value, which represents premiums received and investment returns credited to the policy less deductions for mortality
and morbidity costs and expense charges. Significant judgement 1s exercised in making appropriate estimates of gross profits which are
based on historical and anticipated future experiences, these estimates are regularly reviewed by the Group.

The Group accounts for insurance contract iabilties for pariicipating business written i participating funds by estabiishing a habuity for
the present value of guaranteed benefits less estimated future net premiums to be collected from policyhoiders. in addition, an
insurance hability 15 recorded for the proportion of the net assets of the participating funds that would be aliocated to policyholders
assuming all relevant surplus at the date of the consolidated Statement of Financial Position were to be declared as a policyhoider
dividend based upcn applicable regulations, Establishing these llabilities requires the exercise of significant judgement. In addibion, the
assumption that all relevant performance 1s declared as a policyhelder dividend may not be borne out in practice The Group accounts
for other participating business by estabiishing a habihty for the present vaiue of guaranteed benefits and non-guaranteed participation,
less eshimated future net premiums to be collected from policyholders.

The judgements exercised in the valuation of insurance contract affect the amounts recognised in the financial statements as nsurance
contract benefits and insurance coniract kabilties. Further details of the related accounting policy. key risk and variables, and the
sensitivities of assumptions to the key varables inrespect of insurance contract labilifies are provided in notes 1k}, 2, 31 and 32.

Fair value measureément of financial 3ssefs

The Group determines the fair values of financial assets traded in active markets using quoted bid prices as of each reporting date. The
far values of financial assets that are not traded i active markels are typically determined using a variety of other valuation
techniques, such as prices observed in recent transactions and values obtaned from current bid prices of comparable investments.
More judgement is used n measuning the fair value of financial assets for which market observable prices are not avallable or are
available onty infrequently.

Changes n the fair value of financial assets heid by the Group's parbcipating funds affect net only the vaiue of financial assets but are
also reflected in corresponding mevements in msurance and investment contract habilities. This 1s due to an insurance hability being
recorded for the properbion of the net assels of the parbicipating funds that would be aliocated to pelicyholders if ail relevant surplus at
the date of the consclidated Statement of Financial Position were to be declared as & policyholder dividend based on current local
regufations. Both foregoing changes are reflected in the Income Staternent.

Changes in the fair value of financial assets held to back the Group's unit-lnked contracts result in a corresponding change i insurance
and investment contract habilities, Beth foregoing changes are slso reflected in the Income Statement.

Further details of the fair value of financial assets and the sensitivity analysis to imterest rates and equity prices are provided in notes
1(f), 28, 29, 30 and 32.

AlA New Zealand Limited and Subsidiaries S



Notes to the Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2019

i

Statement of Significant Accounting Policles (continued)

Critlcal Accounting Estimates and Judgements (eontinuved)

Liabilities Grising from reinsurance coniracls

Liabilities arising from reinsurance contracts can be subject to similar factors to the policy liabities. The judgements exercised in the
valuahion of insurance contracts affect the amounts recognised In the financial statements as insurance contract benefits and
insurance contract habilities. Further detais of the related accounting policy, key risk and variables, and the sensitivities of assumplions
to the key variables in respect of reinsurance liabidities are provided in notes 1(k), 2,18 and 32.

Deferred tak 3ssels

Estimating the amount of deferred tax assets arising from tax losses requires a process that involves determining appropriate
provisions for income tax expense, forecasting future year's taxable income and assessing the Group's abfiity to utilise the tax benefits
through future earnings. The Group has reviewed its selvency projections over the future yvears and considered the expected growth in
annualised new premiums. Within the forgcast period, where management believe that the Group will be profitable and will be liable for
income tax payments, it will recognise those losses and utilise any available tax losses against future earnings, subject to maintalning
shareholder continuity.

impairment Testing of Intangible assels

For the purposes of mparment testing, ntangible assets are grouped into cash-generating units. These assets are tested for
impalirment by comparing the carrying amount of the cash-generating unit, to the recoverable amount of that cash-generating umt.
The determination of the recoverable amount requires significant udgement regarding the selection of appropriate valuation
technigues and assumptions.

Presentatlon Currency and Reunding

The functional and presentation currency of the Group is New Zealand dollars. All amounts are presented in millions, unless otherwise
stated.

Particular Accounting Policles

Accounting policies have been consistently applied to all periods presented, unless otherwse stated,

{a) Basls of Consollidation

Where it 15 determined that there is a capacity to control, the Group financal statements consolidate the financial statements of a
parent and ail its subsidiaries using the acquisition method of consolidation. Cantrol exists when the Group 1s expased, or has
rights, to variakle returns from its involvement with the investee and has the abilty to affect those returns through its power over
the investee. Subsidiaries are consohdated from the date on which controi is transferred fo the Group and are no longer
consohdated from the date that control ceases. AlA N7 has 100% ownership of each of its subsidiaries {refer note 14), There are
no substantial removal rights and it has controlling ecenomic interests,

All intragroup balances and transactions have been eliminated in preparing the consclidated financial statements.

AlA NZ Group Compames Acting as Trustee or Manager of Superannuation Schemes

As at the balance date, the Group provides investment management services for the Sovereign Superannuation Retrrement Fund
(3SRF) The assets and liabilities of SSRF are not included in the Group financal staterents as the Group has no capacity to controt
thern.

(b} Forelgn Currency Translation

All foreign currency monetary assets and hiabilities are translated to New Zealand currency at the exchange rate ruling at balance
date.

Non-monetary assets and habilites denominated n foreign currencies, measured at far value, are translated to New Zealand
currency at the exchange rate ruling at the dates that the values were determined. Foreign currency exchange differences
relating to securities and derivative financial instruments are included in investment income or other income.

Fareign currency transactions are translated to New Zealand currency at the exchange rate ruling at the date of the transaction.

(c) Revenue Recognition

Revenue is recognised to the extent that It is probable that economic benefits will flow to the Group, and that the revenue and
stage of completion of the transaction can be reliably measured. The principal sources of revenue are premium revenue and
investrnent revenue.

Fremium Revenue

(i}  Life Insurance Contracts
Premiums received for providing services and bearing risks are recogmised as revenue on an accrual basis. Premiums are
recognised &s revenue when due from the policyholder.

AlA New Zealand Limited and Subsidiartes
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Notes to the Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2019
1 Statement of Significant Accounting Pelicies (continued)
{c) Revenue Recaognltion (continued)

(y  Life Investment Cantracts
Premiums received are split, with the fee portion recognised as revenue on an accrual basis and the deposit porbon
recogrised as an ncrease in life investment contract babilities.

imtizl entry fee income on Iife nvestment contracts is recognised as revenue at the outset of the contract only if a specific intial
service (for which the fee relates) 15 provided by the Group at that time, Otherwise initial entry fee income is deferred as a
component of ife mvestment contract habilibies and 1s amoriised as related services are provided under the contract.

Investment Revenue

Interest revenue s recognised in the income Statement using the effective interest method. Dividend revenue 15 recogrised in the
Incorne Statement when the Group's right of receipt is esiablished. Realised gains and losses on financial nstruments are included
as part of investment income. Unrealised gains and losses from fair value re-measurement of financial instruments are also
included in investrment income (refer to note 1(f)).

Reinsurance Revenue

Upfront reinsurance commissions are inidially recognised in the income Statement and then deferred as liabilities ansing from
rensurance contracts. This amount is then amortised over the life of the underlying policies, in line with the release of profi
margins assoctated with these policies. Ongoing reinsurance commission income 1s recognised in the period in which i is earned.

Gther Revenue
Other revenue 15 recognised on an accrual basis

(d) Expense Recognltion
Claimns

Life insurance contract claims are recognised as an expense when a hability has been established. Claims under life invesiment
contracts represent withdrawals of investrnent deposits and are recoamsed as a reduction in ife investment contract lisbiities

Acquisition Costs

Acquisition costs are the fixed and vanabie cosls of accepting, 1ssuing and initiafly recording policies, including intial commission
and similar distribution costs. Acquisition costs de not inciude general growth and development costs that are not specifically
related to acquisition activity.

Acquusiiion Costs - Life Insurance Conlracts

Acquisition costs attributable to Iife insurance contracts are deferred as an element of Ife msurance contract hatilities. These
costs are amortised over the hfe of the policies written Unamortised acquistiion costs are a component of the Iife msurance
contract liabilities. Amortisation of acquisition costs are recogrised in the Income Statement as a component of ‘life msurance
contract labiities - ncrease/(decrease) at the same time as policy marqins are released.

Acquisition Cosis - Life Invesiment Contracis

Commission that vares with and 1s directly related to securing new contracts 1s capitahised as a deferred acquisition cost asset and
15 included in intangible assets. The deferred acquisition cost asset 1s subsequently amortised over the ife of the contracts and s
recognised i other operating expenses in the Income Statement

Mamifenance and fnvesiment Managemeni Expenses

Maintenance costs are the fixed and variable costs of administering policies subsequent to sale and are recognised in the Income
Statement on an accrual basis These include general growth and development costs. Maintenance costs include all operating
costs other than acquisition and investment management costs

Investment ranagement costs are the fixed and variable costs of managing investment funds and are recogriised in the Income
Statement on an accruat basis.

Other Operaiing EXpenses
All other operating expenses are recognised in the Income Staterment on an accrual basis

Other operating expenses also include employee benefits, depreciation, amortisation and other management costs. Emoloyee
benefits include salanes and wages, annual and long service leave, annual bonuses, lwisaver contributions, and premiums on
employee life, disakibty income and medical schemes.

{e) Dividend Recognition

Ordinary dividends are recognised as a movement in equity in the reporting pericd within which they have been approved by the
AiA NZ Beard.

Where a dividend 1s declared post reporting date, but prior to the date of ssue of the financial statements, disclosure of the m%]
deciaration 1s made in the Notes to the Financial Statements but no liability 1s recognised in the Statement of Financial Position
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Notes to the Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2019
1 Statement of Significant Accounting Policles (continued)

(fy FInanctal Instruments
BASIS OF RECOGNITION AND MEASUREMENT

The Group classifies financial nstruments into one of the foilowing categories at initial recogmition: financial assets at Fair Value
through Profit or Loss (FVTPL), Amortised Cost, Fair Value through Other Comprehensive Income, financial liabilities at FVTPL and
financial liabilities at amortised cost. Regular purchases and sales of financial assets are recognised and derecognised, as
applicable, using trade date accounting.

Some of these categories require measurement at fair value. Where available, quoted market prices are used as a measure of far
value. Where quoted market prices do not exist, fair values are estimated using present value or other market accepted valuation
technigues, using methods and assumptions that are based on market cenditions and risks existing as at balance date.

Financial assets that are stated at cost or amortised cost are reviewed at each balance date to determine whether there is
objective evidence of imparment, NZ IFRS @ regurres entities {o estimate and account for expected credit losses for all relevant
financial assets that are not at FVTPL. The impairment methodology applied depends on whether there has been a significant
increase in credit risk, Given the nature of the Group's financial assets not at FVTPL, being primarily trate and other receivables,
the Group applies the Simplified Approach permitted by NZ IFRS 9, which reguires expected fifetime losses to be recognised from
initial recognition of the receivables. An impairment foss is reversed If the subseguent increase in the recoverable amount can be
related objectively to an event accurring after the impairment loss was recognised. The impairment loss 1s reversed only to the
extent that the financial asset's carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount that wouid have been determined If no
impairment foss had been recognised.

Financial assets are derecognised when the right to receive cash fiows frem the financiat assets have expired. Derecognition also
occurs when the right to receive cash flows from financial assets have been transferred together with substantially all of their risks
and rewards. A financial lability 13 derecogrused when the obligation under the liability s discharged, cancelled or expired.

FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH PROFIT AND 1L.OSS
Assets in this category are measured at fair value at inception and on an on-going hasis and include:
investmenis

Investments held by Ife insurance companies are recognised at FYTPL at inception because they back life insurance contract
Iakilies or life investment contract habilities. Gains and losses arising from the fair value remeasurement of Investments are
included as part of investment revenue in the Income Statement,

Investments inciude equity securities, fund certificates. property securities and fixed interest securities.

Foreign Currency Contracts

Forward currency cantracts are used to reduce the Group's exposure to currency movements affecting the market value of the
Group's investments dencminated in foreign currencies.

Dearivative Financial Instrument

Derivative financial instruments are recorded at FYTPL based on market accepted valuation technigues using observable market
inputs, Subsequent gains and losses arising from the fair value re-measurement of derivalive finzncial instruments are recognised
immediately i investment revenue in the Income Statement. All derivatives used by the Group are classified as FVTPL as they do
not meet the criteria for hedge acceunting under NZ IFRS S.

The Group recagnises derivatives In the Statement of Financial Position at their fair vaiue. Derivative assets are the fair value of
derivatives which have a positive fair value. Derwvative liabilities are the fair value of derivatives which have a neqative fair value.

AMCRTISED COST

Assets in this category are recogrised initiafly at fair value plus transaction costs and are subsequently measured at amortised
cost using the effective interest method iess any allowance for uncollectible amounts which include:

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and Cash Equivalenis include bank current accounts, cash on deposit and registered certificates of deposit, readily
convertible to known amounts of cash, that are subject to an insignificant risk of change in value. Assels in this category are at
face value and interest 15 taken to the Income Statement when garned. Bank overdrafts are shown within cash and cash
equivalents if the net position is an asset due to the Group's right to offsel overdrafts within its banking facility.

Tradle and Other Receivables

Trade and other receivablas include investment receivables, amounts due from related parties, amounis due from remsurers and
other current assets. These assets are short term in nature and the carryimg amount includes allowances for impaired receivables
and therefore 1s considered a reasonable estimate of fair value. A forward-looking expected credit loss mode! (ECL} was
introduced in IFRS © that results in losses recognised before an actual default event has taken place. The Group has adopted and
applied the simplified model for ECL for ail financial assets not measured at FVTPL, except premiums and reinsurance receivables. @
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Notes to the Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2019
1 Statement of Significant Accounting Policles (continued)
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Financlal Instruments (continved)

FINANCIAL LIABILITIES AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS

Life investment confract habiliies are measured at fair value, with subsequent gains and losses arising from fair value re-
measurement recogruised in the income Statement. Refer to note 1(k) for more details of kfe investment contract habiities

FINANCIAL LIABILITIES AT AMORTISED COST

This category includes all finanoial habilities other than those designated by the Group as at FVTPL. Liabiities in this category
inciude;

Trave and Other Paysbles

Trade and other payables includes amounts due to agents, outstanding claims, investment creditors, trade creditors and accruals,
amounts due to related parties, reinsurance payable and other payables Liabilities in this category are imitially measured at fair
value plus transaction costs. After initisl recognition, they are measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method,

Plant and Equipment
Plant and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment {osses.

The cost of plant and equipment less the estimated residual value 15 depreciated over their useful Iives on a straight-iine bass.
Depreciation of work in progress witl not begin until the asset 5 avallable for use 12 when it 15 in the location and condition
necessary for it to be operating in the manner intended by management The eshimated useful lives of the major assets are:

> Leasehold improvements and services 10-18 years
» Office equipment, furniture and fittings and computer eguipment 3-5 years

These assets are reviewed for imparment at least annually and whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the
carrying amaount may not be recoverable. An assel’s carrying amount 15 written down immediately to its recoverable amount if the
asset's carrying amount is greater than its estimated recoverable amount. Any impairment loss 1s recognised immediately i the
Income Statement. The recoverable amount 1s the higher of the asset's fair value less costs to sell and value in use.

Intanglble Assets
internally Developed Software, Acquired Soffware Licences and Apphication Software

The Greup generally expenses computer software costs in the year incurred. However, some costs associated with developing
identifisble and unique software products controlled by the Group, including empioyee costs and an appropriate portion of
relevant averheads, are capitalised and treated as intangible assets when certain crileria are met. Acquired computer software
licenses are capitalised on the basis that they are costs incurred to acquire and to use specific software These assets are
amortised using the straight-line method over their useful hives (3 - 5 years).

Qther intanigqible Assets and Deferred Acquisition Costs

Costs for the right to service policies have been capitalised and treated as intangible assets These assels are amorbised using the
straight-ine method over theirr useful lives Other operating costs {refer note d)} that vary with, and are directly related to
securing new life investment poelicies, are capialised as & deferred acquisition cost intangible asset, and are subsequently
amortised over the life of the contracts

) Agency purchases 18 - 54 months

> Deferred acquisition costs 6-17 years

intangible Assets impairment Reviews

Intangible assels are assessed at an asset level when they generate independent cash inflows, otherwise they are grouped into
Cash Generating Units {CGU} for smpairment purposes. impairment reviews are performed annually to dentify events or changes
in circumstances that indicate that the carrying amount may not be recoverable. If the asset or the CGU's carrying amount 1s
greater than its estimated recoverable amount, the carrying amount of the asset or CGU 1s written down to its recoverable
amount. The recoverable amount 15 the higher of the asset or CGU's fair value less costs to sell and the value 1n use Any
mparment loss 1s recognised immediately in the Income Statement.

Taxatlon

Tax expense for the period comprises current and deferred tax Tax 1s recognised In the Income Statement, except to the extent
that i relates to items recogmsed in other comprehensive inceme or directly in equity, in which case, the tax 1s recogrsed in other
comprehensive income or directly ;m equity, respechively.

Current tax 15 the expecied tax payable on the taxable income for the period, using tax rates enacted or substantially enacted at
batarice date after talung advantage of all aliowable deductions under current taxation legislation. It alse includes any adjustrent
to tax payable in respect of previous financial years. Current tax 1s recognised as a hability (or asset) to the extent that it is unpaid
(or refundable}.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2019
1 Statement of Significant Accounting Policles (continued)
(i) Taxation (continued)

Deferred tax 15 provided using the balance sheet lianility method, providing for temporary differences between the carrying
amounts of assets and Habilities for financial reporting purposes and the amounts used for taxation purposes. The amount of
deferred tax provided is based on the expected manner of realisation or settlement of the carrying amount of assets and habibties,
using tax rates enacted or substantively enacted at balance date.

In accordance with NZ 1AS 12 /ncorme Taxes, a deferred taxation asset 1s recognised only to the extent that it is probable (1.e. more
Iikely than not} that a future taxable profit will be available against which the asset can be utilised, Deferred taxation assets are
reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that the retated tax benefit will be realised, Any reduction 1s recognised in the
Income Staternent.

Tax labilties and assets are transferrad among group companies through intercompany accounts at the current tax rate if, and
only if, the entities concerned have a legally enforceable right to make or receve a single nef payment and the entities intend to
make or receive such a net payment or to recover the asset and settle the liabiiity simultaneously.

Life Insurance Tax

From 1 July 2010, life insurers have been subject to a new tax regime. Two tax bases are maintained; the shareholder base which 1s
subject to tax on life risk products (premiums less claims and expenses) and net investment ncome from shareholder funds, and
the policyholder base which is subject to tax on net investment income from policyholder funds. The Iife nsurer pays tax on both
bases at the prevailing corporate tax rate of 289% (31 December 2018: 28%). As the life insurer is taxed as proxy for the
policyhelder, returns to paficyholders are tax exempt.

The regime is applicable to ali Iife insurance policies, irrespective of when they were ssued. However, the new regime offers a
concessional tax treatment (known as a transitional adjustment) for life insurance pelicies that were in force prior te 1 July 2010,
The impact of the transitional adjustment is that it effectively treats designated policies (known as grandparented policies) as
having income tax levied on & basis equivalent to the life office base under the old tax regime. In general, grandparented status
lasted for 5 vears from 1 July 2010. However, for certain policy types, namely level term policies, the grandparented status can be
for the duration of the policy.

Goods and Services 7ax

Where a transaction 1s subject to Goods and Services Tax (GST) the financial statements have been prepared so thal ali
components are stated exclusive of GST, with the exception of frade receivables and trade payables, which include GST invoiced.

(j) Provislons

A provision 1s recognised in the Statement of Financial Position when the Group has a present legal or constructive obligation as a
result of past events: it is probable that an outflow of rescurces will be required to settle the obligation, and a reliable astimate can
be made of the amount of the obligation.

(K) Llife Insurance Business
Statutory Obligations

The Naw Zealand insurance industry 1s reguiated by the RBNZ under the Insurance (Prudential Supervision) Act 2010 (IPSA). IPSA
requires ali entibies carrying on insurance busingss in New Zealand (as defined by IPSA) to hold & licence. AlA NZ holds a full
licence under IPSA. Key slements of the insurance prudential supervision regime include minimum soivency requirements and
reqular reperting to the RBNZ, the need for directors and other reievant officers te meet fit and proper standards, and governance
and risk management regquirements

IPSA requires that & life insurer must at all times have st least one statutory fund in respect of its [ife insurance business. On 1 July
2013, AIA NZ established a statutory fund, the Statutory Fund No. 1, that relates solely to AIA NZ's life insurance business as defined
by IPSA. AlA NZ's standalone health insurance business (which 1s not classified as life nsurance business under IPSA) and business
that does not relate to contracts of nsurance are included in AIA NZ's Other Fund, The activities of the statutory fund are reported
in aggregate with the Other Fund in the financial statements. Further information on the statutory fund 15 provided in notes 22 and
3l.

The Group has changed approved nsurance rating agency from AM. Best Company te Fitch Ratings to align with AlA during 2015.
The financiat strength rating assigned by Fifch 1o AIA NZ is AA Very Strong. AM. Best's rating was A+ (Superior).

Lifa insurance and Life investiment Contracls - Classification

The Group's life Insurance business 15 split beiween ife insurance contracts and hfe invesiment contracts. Life insurance contracts
are accounted for in accordance with the requirements of NZ IFRS 4 /nsurance Contracts. Life investment contracts are
accounted for in accordance with NZ IFRS @ Flnancial instruments.

Life Insurance contracts are these contracts that transfer significant insurance risk. Life investment contracts are those contracts
with no significant insurance risk, but which give rise to a financial bability under NZ IFRS S.

Contracts that contain a discretionary participation feature are also classified as hfe insurance contracts. ﬁ
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For the yvear ended 31 December 2019

1

Statement of Significant Accounting Policles (continued)

(k)

LIfe insurance Buslness (continued)

The financial reporting methodology used to determine the value of hie insurance contract labiities 1s referred to as Margin on
Services (Mo5S), as set out in New Zealand Society of Actuanes Professional Standard No 200 Deferrnination of Life insurance
Policy Lighiitres. MaoS 15 designed to recognise profits on life insurance policies as services are provided to poicyholders and
Income s received. Under MoS, the planned profit margin of premium recerved less expenses 15 deferred and amortised over the
Iife of the contract, whereas losses are recognised immediately,

Life insurance contract liabiities are calculated in a way that allows for the systematic release of planned profit margins as
services are provided to policyholders and the revenues relating to those services are received, Services used to determine profit
recegrution include the cost of expected msurance claims and annuity payments, Life insurance contract izbilities are generally
determmned as the present value of all future expected payments, expenses, taxes and profit margins, reduced by the present
value of all future expected premims.

Profit 1s analysed into the following categories:
Y Planned Margins of Revenues Over Expensas

At the time of wniting a policy and at each balance date, best estimate assumptions are used to determine all expected future
payments (including tax) and premiums. Where actual experience replicates best esbimate assumptions, the expected profit
margins will be released to profit over the life of the policy.

1y The Difference Between Actusl and Assumed Experience

Experience profits and fosses are realised where actual experience differs from best estimate assumptions. Instances giving
r1se to experience profits and losses mclude vanations in claims, expenses, mortality, disconbinuance and investment returns
{to the extent the shareholder assumes investment risk}

() Changes to Underlving Assumptions

Assumptions used for measuring life insurance contract liabilities are reviewed each year. Where the review leads to a
change n assumptions, the change is deemed to have occurred from the end of the yvear

The financial effect of a change in discount rates resulting from changes in market conditions s recognised in the year that
the rates are chanaed The financial effect of all other changes to assumptions s recogrised in the Income Statement over
the future years duning which services are provided to policyholders. If, based on best estimate assumptions, written
business of a group of related products 1s expected to be unprofitable, the total expected loss for that related product group
1s recognised in the Income Statement immediately. When loss making business becomes profitable previously recogrised
losses are reversed,

(V) favestment Earmings on Assets in Excess of Folicy Listilifies

Profits are generated from investment assets in excess of those required to meet policy Habilities, Investment earnings are
directly mfluenced by market condibions and as such this component of MoS profit will vary from year o year.

Life Invastment Contract Ligbilities

All contracts issued by the Group which are classified as Iife investment contracts are unit hinked, The fair value of a unit hnked
contract s deterrmined using the current umit values that reflect the fair value of the financial assets backing the contract,
muittiphed by the number of units attributed to the contract holder,

identification of Assels Backing Life invastment Contracts

All contracts 1ssued by the Group thet are classified as ife insurance contracts are non-hnked. The assets backing unit-inked
contracts are n separate investment funds from those backing non-hinked contracis.

Remnsurance
Contracts entered into by the Group with reinsurers alt meet the definition of an insurance contract.

As the remnsurance agreements provide for indemnificabion of the Group by the reinsurers against loss or liability, remsurance
ncome and expenses are recognised separately in the income Statement when they become due and payable in accordance with
the remsurance agreements.

Rensurance recoveries for claims are recognised as remnsurance income, Reinsurance premiums are recognised as reinsurance
expenses.

Liabtties ceded under reinsurance are the present value of future reinsurance clamms recervable and commissions, and premiums
pavable by the Group and have been classified as an asset or labilities ceded under reinsurance. Reinsurance assets are assessed
for impairment an a quarterly basis.

Liabihties arising from remnsurance contracts are computed using the Iife insurance contracts method as above and i Iine with
revenue recognifion in note ¥c)
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For the year ended 31 December 2019
1 Statement of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

(0

(m}

(§1)]

Retirement Benefits Obllgations

The Group currently sponsars the SSRF superannuation pian for its employees and ex-employees. The assels and liahilities of this
pian are held independently of the Group's assets in a separate Lrustee administerad fund. The plan has bath a defined benefit and
defined contribution section and has been closed o new members since 1 July 2004

Fult disclosures of the defined tenefit and contribution plan as required by NZ IAS 19 Empicyes Benefits have not been presented
on the basis that these assets and liabilities are not material in the context of the Group's Statement of Financial Posttion.

Delined Benefit Flans
Defined benefit plans are format arrangements under which an enlity provides post-employment benefits.

The assel recognised on the Statement of Financial Posttion in respect of SSRF 15 calculated as the present value of the defined
benefit obhigation and the fair value of the plan‘s assets deducted. The discount rate is the yield at bafance date on New Zealand
Government bonds which have approximately the same terms to maturity. Where the calculation results in a benefit to the Group,
the recognised asset is limited to the present value of any fulure employer contributions to the plan that can be funded from the
plan surpius.

Actuarial gans and losses arising frem the above valuation are charged or credited direcily to the Statement of Comprehensive
income.

Defined Contribution Flans

The SSRF Befined Contribution Plan 1s & post-employment benefit plan under which the Group pays fixed contributions to the plan
and will have no fegal or constructive obligation to pay further contributions if the fund does not hold suificient assets to pay alt
employaa benefiis relating to emplioyee service in the current and prior years

Contributions to SSRF are recognised as an expense in the Income Statement as incurred.

Employee Benefits

Employee benefits are recognised when they accrue to employees and Include salaries, wages, bonuses, annual leave, long service
leave and pension obligations. A provision 1s made for the estimated liability for emplavee benefits as a result of services renderec
by employees up to the reporting date.

Liabiiities arising in respect of employee entitlements expected to be settled within 12 months of the reporting date are measured
at their nominal amounts. All other employee entitlernents are measured as the present value of expected fuiure payments made
in respect of services provided by employees up to the reporling date. Consideration is taken based on expected future upiake of
the benefit, current wage and salary leveis, departures and periods of service. Expected fuiure payments are discounied using
market yields at the reporting date on New Zealand Government bonds with terms to maturity and currency that match, as closely
as possible, the estimated future cash flows.

Share Based Compensation and Cash incentive Plans

AlA, the ultimate owner of the Group, operates several share-based compensation plans, under which AlA receives services from
the employees, directors, officers and agents as consideration for shares and/or share opticns of AlA. These share-based
compensation plans comprise the Share Gption Scheme (5O Scheme), the Restricted Share Unit Scheme (RSU Scheme) and the
Ermployee Share Purchase Plan (ESPP}.

The share-based compensation plans are predominantly equity-settied plans. Under an equity-settied share-based compensation
plan, the fair value of the employee services received in exchange for the award of shares and/er share oplions s recognised as
an expense in the Income Statement over the vesting period, with & corresponding amount recorded as equity in AIA Group's
financial statements. Any amount recharged by AlA to the Group for eguity-setiled share based payment arrangements are offset
against the amount recorded in the related party balance for AlA.

The total amaunt to be expensed over the vesting period i1s determined by reference to the fair value of the shares and/or share
options awarded. Non-market vesting conditions are includad in assumptions about the number of shares and/or share options
that are expected to be vested. At each period end, the Group revises iIts estimates of the number of shares and/or share options
that are expected to be vested. Any impact of the revision to onginal estimates s recognised in the Income Statement with a
corresponding adiustment to the intercompany balance for AIA. Where awards of share-based payment arrangements have
graded vesting terms, each tranche s recognised as a separate award, and therefore the farr value of each tranche 1s recognised
over the applicable vesting period.

The Group estimates the fair value of share options using a bimom:at lattice model. This model requires inputs such as AlA's share
price. implied volatility, risk-free interest rate, expected dividend rate and the expected life of the share option

Where modification or cancellation of an equity-settled share-based compensation plan occurs, the grant date far value continues
to be recognised, together with any incremental value arising on the date of modification if non-rarket conditicns are mel.

Hh
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For the yvear ended 31 December 2019
1 Statement of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
{n) Share Based Compensatlion and Cash Incentive Plans (continued)

For cash-settled share-based compensation plans, the fair value of the employee services in exchange for the award of cash-
settled award 15 recognised as an expense in profit or loss, with a corresponding amount recognised in liability. At the end of each
reporting perwed, any unsettied award 1s re-measured based on the change in far value of the underlying asset, the hability and
expense are adjusted accordingty.

Refer to note 24 for the details of share-based compensation plans.

(0} Contingent Liabllltles

The Group discloses a contingent habibty when it has a possible obligation anising from past events, that will be confirmed by the
occurrence or nen-occurrence of one or more uncertan future events not wholly within the Group's conirol A contingent liability
15 disclosed when a present obligation s not recognised because It 15 not probable that an outflow of resources will be required to
settle an obligation, or the amount of the obligation cannot be measured with sufficient reliability.

(p) Statement of Cash Flows

This has been prepared using the direct approach, modified by the netiing of cash fiows associated with related parties and foreign
exchange forward contracts. For these items, the Group considers that knowledge of gross recewpts and payments is not essential
to understanding the activities of the Group and it 1s considered acceptable to report only the net cash flows. This 15 based on the
fact that the turnover of these items 15 quick, the amounts are large, and the maturities are short

(q) Segment Reporting

The Group is nat required to disclose geagraphic or operating segment nformation under NZ IFRS 8 Operating Segments. On this
basis there are no disclosures refating to the Group's geographic or operating segments.

(r) Lease Llabllitles and Right-of-use Assets

The Group assesses whether a contract 15 or contains a lease, at inception of the contract, The Group recogrises & right-of-use
assef and a corresponding lease kability with respect to all lease arrangements in which it s the lessee.

The lease hatility 15 initially measured at the present value of the lease payments that are not paid at tha commencement date,
discounted by using the rate imphcit in the lease. If this rate cannot be readily determined, the Group uses its incremental
borrowing rate The lease labikty 15 subseguently measured by increasing the carrying amount to reflect interest on the lease
hability (using the effechive interest method} and by reducing the carrying amaount to reflect the lease payments made.

The right-of-use assets comprise the imibial measurement of the corresponding lease liabibty, lease payments made at or before
the commencement day and any imibial direct costs. They are subsequently measured at cost less accumulated depreciation and
impairment losses. Right-of-use assels are depreciated over the shorter period of lease term and useful Iife of the underlying
asset.

The Group apphed NZ IFRS 16 from 1 January 2019, This resulted in a change in treatment to exisiing leases. Refer to note 1 under
the heading ‘General Accounting Pelicy' for more infermation on the impact implementing this standard has on the Group

(s) Related Party Transactions

Transactions with related parties are recorded at amounis mufually agreed and transacted between the parbies to the
arrangement
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Notes to the Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2019
2 Actuarlal Poiicles and Methods

The effective date of the policy liabililes and solvency margin calculation for the Group is 31 December 2019, Jack Chau FiAA, as the
Head of Actuarial of AIA NZ, is satisfied as to the accuracy of the data from which the amount of life insurance and life investment
contract liabilities has been determined,

The projection method 15 used to determing ife insurance and ife nvestment contract liahiities, In principle, the projection method uses
expected cash flows (premiums, investment income, surrenders or benefit payments, expenses) plus nrofit marging to be released in
future periods, to calculate the present value of contract liabifities.

Life Insurance and life nvestment contract habihbies have been determined in accordance with Prefessional Standard 20 of the New
Zealand Society of Actuaries and the requirements of NZ IFRS 4.

Key assumptions used in determiming fife insurance and fe investment contract liabiibies are as foliows:

(a)
{i

an

()

(c)

(d}

(e)

(n

Discount Rates
Businass Where Benefits are Contractually Linked (o the Ferformance of Assels Held

The discaunt rates used to determine life insurance and hife investment contract lisbilities reflect the expected future gross returns
on the Group's current stratagic asset mix, Fixed interest investments were assurned to earn 1.8% pa (31 December 2018 2.4%) and
equity investments 5.89% pa (31 December 2018 6.4%). The discount rates used for individual classes of business varied betweaen
1.8% pa and 3.1% pa (31 December 2018 2.4% and 3.89%).

Other Business

The discount rate used to determine life insurance contract habilities is & risk free discount rate. Single point discount rates have
been determined so that the term structure of the products is taken into account in sethng the discount rate. For annuities and risk
business rates between 1.69% and 2.7% pa were used {31 Decemnber 2018 2.2% to 3.3%).

Profit Carriers
Policies are divided inte related product greups with profit carrigrs and profit margins as follows:

Pollcy type Carrier
Risk Expected claims payments
Savings business Funds under management/investment management expenses

Traditional participating business  Bonuses

Investment and Malntenance Expenses

Future mamtenance and investment expenses have been assumed &l current levels in line with contractual fees set out in
agreement with AlIA Services New Zealand Limited, a wholly owned subsidiary of AlA NZ, and external fund managers. Future
inflation has been assumed to be 2.0% pa (31 December 2018 2.0%) for determining future expeanses and inflation linked increases
in benefits and premiums

Taxatlon

The rates of taxation enacted or substantially enacted at the date of the valuation are assurned to continue into the future. The
corporate tax rate used is 28% (31 December 2018 28%). Allowance has been made for the "fair dividend rate" rules that apply to
global equities, where tax is paid on 5% of the market value of investments, regardiess of the actual rate of investment income.

Rates of Growth of Unit Prices
Unit price growth 15 assumed to be equal to the assumed investmenl earning rates less tax and asset based charges for each
product.

Mortallty and Morbldity

Projected future rates of mortalty experience are based on & proportion of the NZ97 tables. These are then adjusted by
comparing the standard tables with the Group's own experience using geomeiric smoothing techniques or moving averages.
Annuitant mortahty is assumed to be a proportion of the PMA92 and PMF92 tables, adjusted for mortally improvements prior to
and after the valuation date.

in general, mortality assumptions are reviewad based on annual experience studies. Mortality experience for all products has been
reasonably consistent with the current assumptions.

Cver 2019, the proportions of NZ97 adopted for the major products range from 47% to 969% (31 December 2018 47% to 96%:).
Frojected future morbicity experience are based on a combination of reinsurers' tables, industry tables. industry experience and
internal investigations. For significant classes of business, internal experience is compared with reinsurers' tables using gecmetric
smoothing fechniques or Moving averages.

A

Brye
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2 Actuarial Pollicles and Methods (continued)

H

(9

(h)

Mortallty and Morbidity (continued)
In general, morbidity assumptions are reviewed based on annual experience studies.

The following changes have been made to morbidity assumptions for 31 Decermnber 2019

-Living Assurance Benent (LAB) claims assumptions have increased approximately by 5% to 7% across LAB products.
-Total and Permanent Disability (TPD) assurmptions are unchanged.

-Disability Income (1) model and assumptions have been updated to allow for an explicit termination assumption.
-Health claims assumptions have increased resulting in an overall ncrease n projected claim costs.

Rates of Discontinuance

Assumpticns for the incidence of withdrawal, partigl terminabion and fransfer of policies paid-up are primanly based on
investigations of the Group's own experience.

Discontinuance rates were reviewed based on data up to 31 December 2018, for FY2019

future rates of discontinuance are:

Pollcy Duration (years)

Age 1 2 3 4 5 ] 7 8 g 10+
As at 31 December 2019
Life rate for age <30 B% 13% 14% 13% 13% 12% 1% 10% 10% 9%
30-39 7% 1% 13% 12% 1% 1% 10% 10% 10% 8%
40 - 49 8% 10% 13% 12% 12% 1% 1% 10% 10% 9%
50 -64 9% 13% 17% 18% 16% 14% 13% 14% 15% 12%
&5+ 13% 18% 22% 20% 20% 19% 19% 19% 19% 18%
Life ievel Lo age 80 <30 16% 13% 14%% 14% 109% 9% 9% 7% 1% 5%
30-39 12% 10% 10% 10% 7% 594 5% 5% 4% 4%
40 - 49 8% 7% 7% T% 5% 4% 4% 3% 3% 2%
50 - 64 6% T% % 6% 6% 5% 4% 4% 4% 3%
65+ 5% 6% 7% 6% 6% 5% 4% 4% 4% 3%
As at 31 December 2018
Life rate for age <30 9% 14% 16% 15% 15% 14% 13% 13% 12% 10%
30 - 3% 6% 10% 14% 13% 12% 2% 1% % 10% 9%
40 - 49 7% 10% 14% 13% 12% 12% 11% 1% 1% 10%
50 - 64 8% 13% 1% 4% 15% 14% 14% 15% 13% 12%
65+ 13% 17% 23% 21% 21% 20% 20% 19% 19% 8%
Life level to age 80 <30 6% 13% 14% 13% 1% 8% 8% 7% 6% &%
30-39 12% 10% 0% 9% 8% &% &% 5% 5% 4%
40 - 49 8% &% 7% &% 5% 4% 4% 3% 3% 3%
50- 64 &% 7% 8% &% 6% 5% 5% 4% 4% 3%
65+ 5% &% 7% 6% 6% 5% 4% 4% A% 3%
As at 31 December 2019 As at 31 December 2018
Age Life Non-LIife Total Life Non-Life Total
Other Risk ¢ 30 21% 13% 20% 12%
30-39 15% 12% 14% 12%
40 - 49 % 10% 11% 1%
50-64 1086 1% 0% 12%
65+ B% 14% 8% 5%
Participating 3% 3%
Savings 8% 8%

Basls of Calculation of Surrender Values

Surrender values are set using an assef share approach and taking into consideration equity between continuing and terminating
pokcyholders

The surrender value basis was changed in 2019 following review, resulting in increases for around two thirds of custemers.
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2 Actuarial Policies and Methods (continued)

(i) Partlcipating business
For most participating business, benus rates are set such that, over long penicds, the returns to policyholders are commensurate with
the Investmeant returns achieved on the relevant assets, together with other sources of profit arising from this business, Distribuiions
are split between policyhoiders and shareholders with the valuation allowing for shareholders to share in distributions at a maximum
allowable rate of 209 (3! December 2018 20%).
in applying the policyholders' share of profits to provide bonuses, consideration 5 given to equity between generations of
policyhelders and equity between the various classes and sizes of policies in force. Assumed future bonus rates included in life
insurance contract habilities were set such that the present value of life insurance contract liabilities equates to the present vaiue of
assets supporting the business together with assumed future investment returns, aliowing for the shareholder's right to participate in
distributions.
Assumed future bonus rates per annum for individual particpabing business were:
'As at 31 December zote . 2018
Ex-Colorual policies Bonus rate on sum assured 0.20% 0.20%
Bonus rate on existing bonus 0.20% 0.20%
Ex-Prudential policies Bonus rate on sum assured 0.12% 0.25%
Bonus rate on existing bonus 012% 0.25%
Ex-NZI policies Bonus rate on sum assured 0.00% 0.13%
Bonus rate on existing bonus 0.00% 0.25%
Ex-Metropolitan Life policies Bonus rate on sum assured 0.00% 0.00%
Bonus rate on existing benus 0.00% 0.00%
investment account policies Crediting Rate 3.23% 2.65%
(1) Impact of Changes [n Assumptions

“§ miliions: o

Refer to note (k) for an explanaticn of the treatment of changes in actuarial assumptions on life Insurance contract liabilties. The
impact of changes in actuarial assumptions made during the reporting pened are:

77 Effect on Lite Insurance .
" Contract Liabllitles
. tZmonthsto’ 6 monthsto
1 Dacember - 31 December

o 20187
Market related changes to discount rates 52 23 &6 18
Non-market related changes fo discount rates 1 - - -
Mortalty and morbidity (30} 30 10
Discontinuance rates 21 - -
Maintenance expenses (3) 2 i
Rensurance {477) -
Other assumptions (5) 0

The implementation of a new reinsurance treaty has adversely impacted on future profit margins.

3 Sources of Proflé

CSmillions o G

Life Insurance

Planned margins ¢f revenues over expenses

Unwind of discount on policy habilities

Difference between aciual and assumed experience

Effects of changes in underlying assumptions

Reversal f (recognition) of fulure expected losses

Net (loss)/proflt after taxation arising from iife Insurance contracts

LIfe Investment

Planned margins of revenues over expenses

Net profit after taxation arlsing from life investment contracts
Sharehaolder invesiment earnings

Total life actlvities

Net proflt after taxatlon attributed to shareholders

12'months to -~ 6months to .
" .31 Decamber: . 31 December
2019 2008
48 23
t -
(44) (8)
(14) [
2 {1
{7 3
6 3
6 3
6 4
5 10 m@ﬂ
5 o Pe
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4 Premium Revenue

§ millions

Premium revenue
Life insurance contract premiums

Life investment contract deposit premiums and fee income

Total premiums

Less: Deposit premiums recognised as anincrease in hfe investment contract habibes

Total premium revenue
Less: Reinsurance expense

Total net premium revenue

5 Investment and Other Revenue

5 millions

Dividends
Realised and unrealised gains/(losses)

Total equlty securlties and fund certificates

Diwvidends

Realised and unrealsed gains/(losses)
Total property securities

Interest

Realised and unrealised gains

Total {ixed interest securities and cash
Realsed and unrealised (losses)/gains
Total derivatives

Total Investment revenue

Other revenue
Investment fees recewved
Other revenue

Totai other revenue

6 Relnsurance Commission Revenue

12 months to 6 months to
31 December 31 December

2019 2018

739 363

19 10

758 373
) (9)

741 364
(352) a77)
385 187

12 months toa 6 menths to
31 December 31 December

2019 2018
1 6
134 (43)
145 (37)
3 1
16 (3)
19 ()
51 30
29 )
a0 39
U] 4
U] 4
243 4
15 8
2
7 8

12 months fo & months to
31 December 31Becember

$ millions

inthial commission
Ongomg commission
Total Reinsurance Commission

2019 2018
2 725
48 25
50 750

The Group entered into & new reinsurance trealy arrangement on 2 July 2018, subseguent to the acguisition by AlA International
Limited. Under ths treaty, the Group received an upfront remsurance commission of $725m in the period ended 31 December 2018

Claims Expense

$ millions

Death, disability and medical claims
Maturities

Surrenders

Annulties

Total claims

Less: Claims recognised as a decrease in iife investment contract habilities

Total clalms expense
l.ess: Remnsurance recoveries
Total net clalms expense

- 12 months to 6 months to

S 31December 31December
‘Note 20190 0 2018

377 206

28 15

92 43

3 2

500 266

8 (89) (42)

LAl zz4

(165) 89

246 135

i

PWe
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8 Other Operating Expenses

.12 months to 6 manths to.
SRR - 31 December 31 December
$millions T 2019 L 201800
initial commission 61 27 - 61 27
Other acquisition expenses 60 33 1 1 &1 34
Policy acquisition expenses 121 60 1 1 122 &1
Renewal commission 92 45 2 1 94 46
QOther maintenance expenses 155 54 2 1 157 55
Policy maintenance expenses 247 99 4 2 251 101
investrnent management expenses 3 1 2 1 5 2
Total life expenses 371 160 7 4 378 164
Total other operating expenses 378 164
Included above:
Amortisation of intangible assets 3 1
Depreciation 8 i
Employee benefits expense
Wages and salarnies B3 4
Defined contribution plan expense 2 1
Fiduciary expenses 2 1
9 Audltor's Remuneration
e 7w 12 months to: 6 mhonths to.
P  31December:. 3 December.
. § thousands EREE R RN T R S Lo ROI9E L2018
PricawaterhouseCoopers is the appointed auditor of the Group for the current and prior period.
Fees paid to PricewaterhouseCoopers are as follows:
Audlt of financlal statements
Fees for the audit of financiat siatements 937 1336
Assurance and audited related services
Reasonable assurance over Annual Solvency Return 44 44
Other services
Agreed upon procedures related to reinsurance - 72
Readiness assessment of internal control cver financial reporting 159 -
Assessment of controls and processes supporting the implementation of Enterarise Date Warehouse 35 -
Total fees paid to auditor 1,175 1,452
10 Taxation
e * 12 months to 6 months to
Lo . eeinil i 31 December. 31 December
$ milons. T Nete 20180 208
Current taxation expense B 4
Deferred taxation expense 23 21
Total taxatlon expense recognised in the Income Statement N 25

The taxation expense on the Group's net profit before taxation differs from the theoretical amount that would arse using the domestic

rate as follows:
Net profit before taxation

Income tax at the current rate of 28% { 3t December 2018 28%)
Investment incorme adjustments

Imputation and PIE tax ¢redit adjustments

Movement in investment contract lizbilities and adjustments
Movement in insurance contract habilities and adjustments
Gther non-deductible expenditure

Prior period adjustments

Total taxation expense recognlsed In the Income Statement
Weighted average effective tax rate

36 35
10 10
(36) 13
@) @)
29 (8
3 10

1 2

(2)

31 25
86% 1%
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11 Imputation Credit Account

Compares may attach imputabion credits Lo dividends paid, which represent the New Zealand tax already paid by the company or fax
group on profits. New Zealand resident shareholders may claim a tax credit to the value of the imputation credit attached to dividends.
The Group has fermed an imputation group with eligible members of the AIA Group (ICA Group). The closing balance of imputation
credits available to all members of the ICA Group as at 31 December 2019 15 57 million (31 December 2018 $7 million). This amount
includes mputation credifs that will anse from the payment of the prowision for income fax and from the receipt of dmdends
recognised as recetvabies as at the reporting dale, and mputstion debits that will arise from the payment of dividends recognised as
payables as at the reporting date

12 Investments

$ millions
As at 31 December 2019 2018
Equity securities and fund certificates 652 604
Fixed interest securities
New Zealand government stock 1,016 1,024
Corporate bends 21 22
Foreign government stock 100 107
Total fixed Interest securities 1137 1153
Property securities &7 64
Total Investments 1,856 1,821

As al 31 December 2019, no nvestmenls were pledged under repurchase agreements or other arrangernents (3t December 2018 nil) A
maturity anaiysis for equity securities, fund certificates, and property securibies has not been presented because these Investments are
ligquid assets end the timing of realisation i1s not known

Fixed Interest Securities
Maturity analysis:

Under one year 4 7
Between one and two years 28 5
Between two and three years 3 29
Between three and four years 434 =}
Between four and five years 8 474
Greater than five years 660 629

1,137 1,153

13 Cash and Cash Equivalents

$ milfions

As at 31 December 2019 2018
Cash at banic and on deposit 307 357
Fereign currency deposits 1 2
Total cash and cash equivalents 308 359
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14

15

16

* Asat3iDecember.. .

Principal Subsidiaries

The Group has an interest in the following entibies:
Entity Name. i L %
AlA Services New Zealand Limited {formerly Sovereign .
Services Linmited) *

Westside Properties Limited

Sovereign Superannuation Funds Limited **

00
100

Assel leasing

All entities were incorporated in New Zealand.

Nature of Business
00 Adminisiration services

Superannuation scheme manager

' Balance Date

31 December

31 December
3t December

* Sovereign Services Limited was renamed to AlA Services New Zealand Limited during the year, on 02 August 2019 as part of a rebranding

strategy. Refer to note 1 for further detatls.

=* Soverelgn Superannuation Funds Limited was de-registered from the New Zealand Company Register on 30 January 2019,

Intangible Assets
- Investment - _
Coeentract o D LR
~ - deferred. - Internally. . . Other - .- .
ST -~ acquisition. . developed - ° Intanglble . - .t
& millions: . o costs software ~ assets: . - Total
Gross carrying value
Balance at 1 January 2019 & )| 1 a8
Additions - 9 - 9
Disposals and write-offs - {4) - (4}
Bafance as at 31 December 2019 5 36 1 43
Accumulated amortlsation and Impalrment losses
Balance at 1 January 2019 1 (an (1 (19}
Amortisation expense (2) n - {3
Disposals and write-offs - 4 - 4
Balance as at 3t December 2019 (3) (14} 1) (18)
Net carrying value at 31 December 2019 3 2 - 25
Gross carrying value
Balance at 1 July 2018 5] 26 1 33
Additions - 5 5
Disposais and write-offs - -
Balance as at 31 December 2018 6 31 3 38
Accumuiated amortisation and Impairment losses
Balance at 1 July 2018 - {7 (1 (18)
Amaortisation expense n - - m
Disposals and write-offs - - - -
Balance as at 31 December 2018 ) (17) (1) (19)
Net carrylng value at 31 December 2018 5 14 - 19

Trade and Other Receivables

: 'l!iDﬁS* =

Investrnent receivables

Cutstanding premiums

Amaounts due from related parties
Amounts due from reinsurers
Agent balances receivable

Other assets

Total trade and other recelvables

Al trade and other receivables have an expected settiernent date of less than 12 months.

21 18

21 19
4

54 58

1 1

8 6

109 102

=t

Puye
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17 Retirement Benefit Surplus
Actuanal gams and losses are recogrused in full each peniod.

SSRF 1s a superannuation scheme with a defined benefit section and a defined contnbution section. The last full triennial actuanal review
was completed in 2019, The next trienral actuanal review is scheduled for 31 March 2022

$ millions SSRF

As at 31 December 2019 2018
Reconciliation of amounts recognised In the Statement of Financlal Posltion

Present value of funded obligations (3} (3)
Fair value of fund assets 10 9
Surplus T &
Adustment for limit on the use of net assets * (5) (5)
Total retlrement benefit surplus (Inclusive of speclfied superannuation

contribution withhatding tax) 2 1

* SSRf's estimated net assets at 31 December 2019 were $10 million (31 December 2018 $9 million), but & large part ¢of the value of the
surplus assets cannot be brought into the Group’s financial statements This s because AIA Services New Zealand Limiied (employer) 1s not
expected to be able to make use of sl the surplus assets for its future employer contributions due to the current size of SSRF's
merntership.

18 Life Insurance and Life Investment Contract Liabilitles

$ millions Life Insurance contracts  Life Investment contracts
As at 31 December 2019 - 2018 2019 ©2018
Reconclltation of movements in pollcy llabilities
Balance at the beginning of the period 26 73 646 10
(Decrease)/increase in Habilities recognised in the Income Staternent,
excluding remsurance and deferred fee income reserve (30} (47) 121 (22)
Investment contract fees = . (15) {8)
Decrease in deferred fee income reserve recognised in the
Income Statement - - (2) m
Deposit premium recognised as an increase in policy habdities N - 17 g
Claims recogrused as a decrease n pelicy labihities - - (89) 42)
Total polley liablilties (4) 26 &78 546
- Life Insurance contracts

2 _ i Under . oneand  Greater than -
$ millions - : : ohe year five years five years Total
Expected reallsation maturity analysis
Expected realisation of policy llabilities as at 31 December 2019 (7 {176} 189 (4}
Expected realisation of policy liabilities as at 31 December 2018 (26) (194) 246 26

Life investment contract liabliitles
The matunty value of ife investment contract labiliies 1s determined by the far value of the inked assets at maturity date. Refer to note
34 for a contractual matunty analysis of Efe investment contract labilibies.

The following tabie provides information on the net of kabilities ceded under remsurance, $43mil {31 December 2018 $33mil) and liabilities
arising from remnsurance contract, $668mii (31 December 2018 ST08mi).

" 'LHe Insurance contracts ¢ LIfe Investment contracts -
.+ 12 months to * 5 months to 12 manths to " 6 months to
. 31December 31December . 31 December * 31 December

$millions i

LLing0l19e 20187 Tl U019 2018

Balance at the beginning of the period {675) 10 =
Arnount recogrised in the Income Statement 50 (685) s e
Total (625) (675) = 7
Maturlty analysls
Under one year (35} (38} -
Greater than one year (590) (637) = =

(625} {675} ‘
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18 Life Insurance and Life Investment Contract Lilabilitles (continued)

19

$ millions

Asat31December
Pollcy llabllitles related to guarantees

Policy ligbilties with a discretionary participation feature

Valuation of policy llabllitles

Cash flows net of tax:

Future policy benefits

Future bonuses

future expenses

Future pianned margins of revenue over expenses
Future premiums

Unvested policyholder benefits

Deferred tax gross up

Total pollcy Hablilltles

Life insurance contracts

20182018

684 664

10,783 8,606

42 41

3,932 3,402
1,445 1326
(15,673) (12,866}

73 72

(606) (555)

(4) 26

Life investment contract policy hiabilities with an investment performance guarantee at 31 Decernber 2019 were 56 mullion (31 Decernber

2018 $6 miilion).

Life insurance contract liabilitles future net cash inflows

Under gne year
Between one and five years
Greater than five vears

152 151
538 512
3,286 2,615
3,976 3,278

The table above shows the estimated timing of undiscounted future net cash flows resulting from life insurance coniract liabilities. This
inciudes estimated future surrenders, claims and maturity benefits, and bonuses, offset by expected future premiums and remnsurance
recoveries. All values are undiscounted to the reporbing date using the assumed future investment earming rate for each product.

Deferred Taxation Llability

As at 31 December -
Balance at beginning of period

Recagnised in the Income Statement
Recognised in the Statement of Comprehensive Income

Total deferred taxation liabllity

bDeferred taxation relates to:

Life insurance and Iife investment contract habihties
Losses avallable for offset against future taxable income
Cther

Total deferred taxatlon llabllity

Deferred taxatlon recognised:

Life insurance and life investment contract habilities
Losses available for offset against future taxable income
Cther

Total deferred taxatlon recognised

2018

549 528
23 21
1
573 549
604 553
(36) (5)
5 1
573 549
51 25
{31} (5)
4 1
24 21
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20 Trade and Other Payables

21

$ millions

As at 31 December 2018 2018
Outstanding ciamms 56 56
Expense creditors AN 14
Prepaid premiums 10 9
Employee benefits 12 9
Investment creditors B 5
Agent balances 6 6
Amounts due to remnsurers 25 25
Amounts due to related parties 19 10
Total trade and other payahles 167 134

As at 31 December 2019, $161m of trade and other payables have an expected settlement date of less than 12 menths. (31 December 2018
$127my.

A maturity analysis of current and non-current financial habilities s presented in note 34.

AlA operates a number of share based compensation schemes. Further information on these share based compensation schemes 1s
disclosed in note 23 and note 24

Contributed Capital

$ miltions _
As at 3t Decembar 2019 2018

Issued ordinary share capital
Balance at beginning of pericd 540 540

Balance at end of period 540 540

As at 31 December 2019, share capital includes 187,805,849 ordinary shares (31 December 2018: 187.805,849).

All ordinary shares are fully paid and have no par value. All ordinary shares have equal voting rights and share equaily m dividends and
surplus on winding up

There was no dividend paid on ordinary shares for the period ended 31 December 2019 (31 December 2018: $460m, this equates to $2 45
per share}.

Al

Dwe
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22 Capitai Management

The objectives of the Group with regard to the management of capital adequacy are:

() rmaintain a level of target surpius which creates a buffer over minimum regulatory capital while still allowing for efficient use of
capital;

(1) maintain a strong capital base to cover the inherent risks of the business; and

(i} support the future development and growth of the business to maximise shareholder value

The AlA NZ board (the Board) has ultimate responsibility for comphance with the solvency standard and managing capital. The Board
approves the capital managemeant policy and mimmurn capital levels and limits, Minimum capital levels are set based on maintaining a
target surplus in excess of solvency margin requirements under the Solvency Standard for Life Insurance Business issued in accordance
with Insurance (Prudential Supervision} Act 2010, Under its licence, the RBNZ requires AlA NZ to hold & solvency margin of at least S0
(31 Decernber 2018 503 for each hfe fund. AlA NZ has two Iife funds, the Statutery Fund and the Other Fund.

if the Board has reasonable grounds to believe that a fadure to mamtain a solvency margin in either Iife fund is ikely to occur at any time
within the next 3 years, the iikely failure must be reported to the RBNZ as soon as is reasonably practicable. Compliance with these
reguirements is & continuous obligation. As a mimimum, calculations must be undertaken twice a year, at six monthly intervals, and
reported to the RBNZ.

Target surplus 15 a capital buffer held on top of regulatery requirements to ensure the likelincod of a breach of regulatory requirements
15 at a level consistent with ALA NZ's risk appetite. The level of target surplus takes account of management assessments of actual risk
and forecasts/stress testing of future capital reguirements, The Board approves the methodology and basis for determining target

surplus.

The solvency position of AlA NZ for the two life funds 15 as follows:

S statutory

As at 31 December 2019

Actuat solvency capital 127 126 253

Minimum solvency capital - n7 117

Solvency margin 127 9 136

Solvency ratlo N/A 107% 216%
As at 31 December 2018

Actuai solvency capital 128 123 251

Minimum sclvency capital . 105 105

Solvency margin 128 18 146
Solvency ratio N/A 1% 240%

The portfalio transfer and its impact on solvency is outlined in note 37
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23 Related Party Transactions and Balances

During the year ended 31 December 2013, the Group has entered into, or had in place, the foliowing related party transachions

a) Immediate and ultimate controiling party

AlA NZ's immediate holding company 15 AlA Sovereign Limited. AlA international Limited (dormiciled in Bermuda) owns 100% of AIA
Soveregn Limited, AlA International Limited's immediate holding company 1s AlA Company Limited. The ultimate holding company
15 AlA Group Limited, a company incarporated in Hong Kong and hsted on The Hong Kong Stock Exchange.

b) Key management personel

Key management personnel have been wdenlified as members of the New Zealand Group executive committee. More information
for key management personel is disclosed in note 25

t} Share based compensation
information on share based compensation is outlined in note 24.
d} Transactions with related parties

The Group entered into transactions with its related parties in the normal course of business. The aggregate armount of income and
expenses arising from these transactions during the reporting period with related parbies was as follows:

$ millions
As at 31 December 2019 2018

Related Party Transactions

Income
Reinsurance commission and claims recoveries from AIA Reinsurance Limited 0 et
Staff and facility re-charge to AlA NZ Branch 3 -
13
Expenses
Paid to AlA Remsurance Limifed for remsurance premiums 5
Paid to AIA NZ Branch for recharge costs of integration, administrative service and staffing 3 1
Paid to AlIA Australia Limited for recharge costs of group integration 10 8
Paid to AlA Company Limited for group service fee 1
19 9
Related Party Balances
Assets
Trade and other receivables from AlA Reinsurance Limited | =
Llabilities
Trade and other payables to AIA Rensurance Limited 1
Trade and other payables to AlA NZ Branch = 1
Trade and other payables to AlA Australia Limited 18 8
19 9

Refer to the Statement of Changes in Equity and note 21 for details of dividends paid to the Shareholder (AlA Sovereign Limited)
The Group is the sponsor, investment manager and assists with adrminstration of one off-balance sheel employee superannuation
scheme (refer note 17)

During the period ended 31 December 2019, AIA NZ participated in the AlA Group catastrophe treaty. In addition, AlA NZ has in place &
lower layer catastrophe treaty with AIA Reinsurance Limided. Refer note 32 "Risk Management Policies” under Insurance Risk.

5
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24 Share Based Compensation
Stock compensation plans

During the year ended 31 Cecember 2019, AlA Group Limited (uitimate parent} made grants of restricted share units {RSU} to certain
emplovees, directors and officers of the Group under the RSU Scheme and the employee share purchase scheme (ESPP).
No grants were made under share aption (S0} scheme in the current year.

RSU Scheme

Under the RSU scheme, the vesting of granted RSUs 1s conditional upon the eligible participants remaining in employment with the
Group during the ratrospective vesting periods. RSU grants are vested either entirely after a specific period of time or in tranches over
the vesting period. If the RSU grants are vested i tranches, each vesting tranche is accounted for as a separate grant for the purposes
of recognising the expense aver the vesting period. For certain RSUs, performance conditions are also attached which include both
market and non-market conditions. RSUs subject to performance conditions are released to the employees at the end of the vesting
period depending cn the actual achievement of the performance conditions. Buning the vesting period, the eligible participants are not
entitled to dividends of the underlying shares, The maximum number of shares that can be granted under the scheme is 301300000
representing approximately 2.5 per cent of the number of shares in issue on listing date.

o Number of .- - Number of
© - Shares ' . Shares: -
.12 months to . 6 months to:

1. 31 December : | 31 December’

LoROI9 2018

Restricted share units

QOutstanding at beginning of financtal period/year - -
Granted 80,152

Vested or exercised = =
Transfer in - -
Farfeited or expired - -
Outstanding at end of financlal perlod/year 80,152 z

Share Option 5cheme

The objective of the Share Oplion (S0) Scheme 15 to align efigible participants’ interests with those of the shareholders of AlA by allowing
eligible participants to share in the value crested at the point they exercise their options, SO awards are vested either entirely after a
specific period of time or i tranches over the vesting period, during which, the eligible participants are required to remain in
ermnployment with the Group. If the SO grants are vested in tranches, each vesling tranche is accounted for as a separate grant for the
nurposes of recognising the expense over the vesting period. The granted share options expire ten years from the date of grant. The
total number of shares under options that can be granted under the scheme is 301,100,000 representing approximately 2.5 per cent of
the number of shares in 1ssue on hsting date.

information about share options outstanding and share options exercisable by the Group's employees @s at the end of the reporting
period 1s as follows:

12 months to 31 December 2019 6 months to 31 December 2018
Share Optlons . average ' Share Options ' average:

S'thousands

Share Optlons HKD HKD

Qutstanding at beqginning of hinancial period/year - - - -
Granted - - & -
Exercised f = n -
Transfer out = i ) =
Cancelled - - = -
Forfeited or expired = - - -
Outstanding at end of flnancial period/year - - - -

=
Pwe
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24 Share Based Compensatlon (continued)
Employee Share Purchase FPlan (ESFP)

Under the ESFP, eligible employees of the Group can purchase ordinary shares of AlA with qualified emplovee contribubions and ALA will
award one matching restricted stock purchase unit to them at the end of the vesting period for each two shares purchased through the
gualified emplayee contributions (contribution shares;. Contribution shares are purchased from the open markel. During the vesting
period, the ehgible employees must hold the contribubion shares purchased during the plan cycie and remain employed by the AlA
Group. The level of gquahfied employee coniritbution s imited to not more than 8% of the annual basic salary subject to a maximum of
HKS17,000 per annum. The awarded matching restricted stock purchase units are expected to be settled in equity. For the vear ended
31 December 2019, eligible employees of the Group pard NZDS605,751 (31 December 2018 NZDSI6,631 ) to purchase 39,491 ordinary
shares (31 December 2018 1,455 ordinary shares; of AlA.

Vatuation methodology

AlA utthises a binomual fattice model to calculate the fair value of the share options grants, a Monte-Carfo simulation maodel and/or
discounted cash flow technique to calculate the fair value of the RSU and £SPP awards, taking into account the terms and conditions
upcn which the awards were granied. The price volatility is estimated on the basis of iImplied volatility of the AIA's shares which 15 based
on an analysis of nisforical data since they are traded in the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong and takes into consideration the historical
volatiity of peer companies. The expected life of the options 15 derived from the output of the valuation model and is calculated based
on an analysis of expected exercise behavior of the AlA Group employees. The estimate of market condihon for performance based
RSUs Is based on one-year historical data preceding the grant date.

12 mont_hs to & months to
31 December 2019 31Pecember 2018
 ESPP Restricted & F._SPP Restricted
Restricted . stock purchase Restricted = stock purchase
Share optlons share units units Share optlons  share units units

Risk-free interest rate 1.59% 1.67% 1.44% - 1.76% 2.33% 21% 1.35% - 2.27%
Volatiity 20.00% 20.00% 24.00% 20.00% 20.00% 20.00%
Dividend yield 1.50% 1.50% 1.60% 1.50% 1.50% 1.80%
Exercise price (HKS) N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A
Option e (in years) N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A
Expected hife (in years} N/A N/A N/A N/A NIA N/IA
Weighted average fair valug per
option / unit at measurement N/ A N/A 75.44 N/A NZA 51,58

The weighted average share price for granted SO valuation s SNii for the vear ended 31 December 20192 as no options were awarded. (3i
Decermber 2018 SN,

Recogrised compensaiion

The total recognised compensation cost (net of expected forfeitures) related to various share based compensation awards granted
under the RSU Scheme and ESPP for the vear ended 31 December 2019 15 NZDS351.894 (31 Decemnber 2018 $16,631).

25 Directors and Key Management Personnel

{2 months to 6 months to
31 December . 31 December

$ millions 2019 2018

Short term employee benefits 4

Total directers and key management personnel compensation

$ millions : : : p GO S

As at 31 December - ) 209 s 208
Provisions for short term benefits 1

Provisions for long term benefits = 1

Key management personnel are defined as permanent members of the executive leadership team. The Group has no other transactions
or balances with key management personnel. The compensaticn paid to directors and key management personnel i3 predominantly in
the form of short term benefits
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26 lL.ease Llablifities and Right-of-use Assets
On 1 January 2019, the Group adopted NZ IFRS 16, The following tabie presents the reconciliation of lease habilities on initial adoption.

Reconclliation of Lease LIabllities pursuant to NZ {FRS 16

S milions

Lease commit'ment.s 'at'3'l Deéember 2018 .

Fffect from discounting at the incremental borrowing rate as of 1 January 2019 (3)
Adjustment relating to a contract not previously in scope for 1AS 17 but included under IFRS 16 4
Liabilities additionally recognised based on the application of NZ IFRS 16 as of 1 January 2019 33

The weighted-average incremental borrowing rate for lease liabilibes mibially recognised as of 1 January was 2.35% pa,

Right-of-use Assets

As atb 1 january 2019 33

Depreciation ({5)
Carrylng amount as at 31 Dacember 2019 28

Lease Liabilities

As at 1 January 2019 33

Interest expense 1

Lease payments {5)
Carrying amount as at 31 December 2015 29

97% of the leases relate to property of which the Group uses as office premises. The remaining leases relate to motor vehicles, The
maturity analysis of lease liabilities 1s included 1n note 34.

27 Capital commitments
The group has no material capital commitments as at 31 Cecemnber 2019 (31 December 2018 nil},

28 Falr Value of Financlal Instruments
The Group's financial assets and financial liabilities are measured on an cn-going basis elther at fair value or amortised cost.

The farr value of a financial instrurment is the price that would be received to sell 3 finanoial asset, or paid to transfer & financial liability, in
an orderly transaction between market parficipants at the measurement date.

A significant number of financial instruments are carried on the Staternent of Financial Pasition at fair value, The best evidence of fair
value is a guated market price in an active market. Therefore, where possible, fair value is based on quoted market prices. Where a
guoted market price for a financial instrument is not avadable, its fair value is based on present value estimates or other valuation
technigques based on current market conditions. These vatuation techriques rely on market observahle inputs wherever possible, or in
hmited instancas, rely on inputs which are uncbservable but are reasonable assumptions based on market conditions.

There are three levels in the hierarchy of fair value measurements which are based on the inputs used to measure fair values:

e Leve!l inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical financial assets or financial liabilities that the Group can
access. Levellassels comprise:
- Egquity and property securities measured based on the bid market price quoted by the stack exchange.
- External fund certificates measured based on the unadjusted unit price provided from the fund manager.
~ Bank bonds and government bonds measured based on & quoted bid rarket price or third party pricing information.

e Level 20 where guoted market prices are not available, fair values have been estimated using present value or other valuation
techniques using INpuis that are observabie for the financial asset or financial liability, either directly or indirecily. Level 2 assets
comprise:

External fund certificates measured based on the most recently available unit price from the fund manager at the time of
valuation, adjusted appropriately using market cbservable benchmarks to accurately reflect the fair vaiue.

Corporate bonds measured based on third party pricing infarmation.

Held for trading foreign exchange confracts measured based on market observable foreign currency inputs sourced from third
party pricing information.

AlA New Zealand Limited and Subsidiaries 32



Notes to the Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2019

28 Fair Value of Financial Instruments (continued)
o Level 3: Farr values are estimated using inputs that are unobservable for the fimancial asset or financial habiity.
{a) Fair Value of Financlal Instruments Measured at Falir Value

The following table presents an analysis by level in the fair value hierarchy of the fair value measurements of financial instruments
that are recogrised and measured at fair value on a recurring basis

$ millions Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Totai
As at 31 December 2019

Financlal assets

Securities
Equity secunities and fund certificates 206 446 = 652
Fixed mnterest securities 1,123 14 - 1,137
Property securitles 67 = = 67
Derivative assets " =l = g
Total financlal assets measured at fair value 1,396 469 < 1,865

Financlal llabllitles
Derivative labitities - “ a .
Life iInvestment contract liabilihies a 678 4 678

Total financial liabllitles measured at fair value - 678 = 678

As at 31 December 2018

Financial assets

Securities
Equity securities and fund certificates 197 407 . 604
Fixed interest secunties 1139 4 % 1,153
Property securities 64 = - 64
Derivative assets = 4 = 4
Total financlal assets measured at fair value 1,400 425 : 1,825

Financlal liablfities

Dervative habilities g 2 5 2
Life investment coniract habikties £ 646 - 646
Total financlal llabllitles measured at falr value i 648 = 648

{b} Falr Value of Financial Instruments Nof Measured at Fair Value

The following table sets out and compares the fair values of financial instruments not measured at fair value with therr carrying

amounts.

Falr Carrying

$ millions Value Value

As at 31 December 2019
Financlat Assets
Cash and cash equivalents 308 308
Trade and other receivables 108 108
Total financlal assets not measured at falr value 47 417
Financlal Liabifitles
Trade and other payables 145 145
Total financial liabllitles not measured at fair value 145 145
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28

Fair Value of Financlal Instruments (continued)

{b) Falr Value of FInanctal Instruments Not Measured at Falr Value (continued)

As at 31 December 2018

Financlal Assets

Cash and cash equivalents 359 359
Trade and other receivables 102 102
Total flnanclal assets not measured at fair value 461 461
Financiai Llabilitles

Trade and other payables e 16
Total flnanclal llabllitles not measured at falr value 16 16

29

Categorles of Financial instruments

" Deslgnafed . Financlal - Flnanclal

“atfalrvalue - assetsat  [labllitiesat. -
AN e SRS SR R RIS S I P - theough' .. amortised. " amertlsed . U s
U Smillions oo o i ot profiterloss o eost oo costll . Total - . Falr Value .

The foliowing tables summarise the carrying amounts and fair values of categories of financial assets and financial abilities.
Refer to note I(f) for a description of the categories and how fair values are estimated.

As at 31 December 2015

Financial assets

Cash and cash equivalents - 308 - 308 308
Trade and other receivables - 109 - 109 109
Securities 1,856 - - 1,856 1,856
Derivative assels k] - - 9 9
Total financlal assets 1,865 417 - 2,282 2,282
FInanc!al liabliltles

Trade and other payables - - 145 45 145
Dervative liabilities - - - - -
Life mvestment contracts a78 - - 678 678
Tota! financlal lfabllities 678 - 145 823 823

As at 31 December 2018

Financlal assets

Cash and cash equivalents . 359 - 359 359
Trade and other receivables - 102 - 102 102
Securities 1,821 - - 1,821 1,821
Derivative assets 4 - - 4 4
Total financlal assets 1,825 461 - 2,286 2,286
Financial liabllities

Trade and other payables - - e ne6 116
Derivative liabilities 2 - - 2 2
Life investment contracts 646 - - 646 646
Total financial Habiiitles 648 - 116 764 764
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30 Asset Quallty
The Group has nc material impaired or past due assets.
Credit Quality of Financlal Assets that are not Past Due or Impalred

Cash and Cash Equivalents
The Standard and Poors (S&P) credit ratings for the Group's major cash holdings are:

31 December 310December

2019 2018
ASB Bank Limited AA- AA-
Westpac New Zealand Limited AA- AA-
ANZ Bank New Zealand Limited AA- AA-
Bank of New Zealand Limited AA- Ad-
Citibank NA A+ A+
Securies
The Group holds fixed interest securities issued by counterparties with the following S&P credit ratings:
As at 31 December 2019 2018 2019 2018 2019 2018
S mitlions Investment-linked* Non-Linked Total
Ratings
AAA - - 4 4 4 4
Al+ 32 28 1,081 1.07% 1,083 1,103
AA 1 2 27 30 28 32
AA- a 9 5 8 9
A+ 1 2 = 1 2
A 1 i = i 1
A 2 2 = 2 2
Total fixed Interest securlties 45 44 1,092 1,109 1,137 1,153

* For investment-hnked assets, the liabiiity to policvhelders 15 inked to the perfoermance of and value of the assets that back these
llakilities. The shareholder has no direct exposure te any nisk in the assets which back these liabilibes.

Credit ratings are not provided for equity and property securiies because they are not subject to credit risk.

Derivative Financial Instruments
The counterparty for the Group’s derivative financial instruments at balance date 15 ASB Bank Lirmted

investment Recewables

This balance comprises oulstanding sales, accrued inferest and cutsianding dividends. Ali cutstanding sales have subseguently been
settled. The credit ratings of counterparties for which accrued interest anises are disclosed in the {able above. Credit risk associated with
cutstanding dividends 1s deemed to be neghgible

Qutstanding Premiums
Outstanding premiums are primanly aged iess than 90 days, and in the case of particpabing policies, have surrender values that are
equal to or greater than the premium amount cutsianding

Amounis Due from Remnsurers
The S&P credit ratings for the Group's major reinsurers are

: Ratlng ‘., Rating

As at 31 December Agency 2019 Agency 28

General Rainsurance Life Australie Limited S&P AA+ S&P AA+
Assicurazioni Generall SP.A AM Bast A AM Best A
RGA Reinsurance Company of Austrahia Limited S&P AA- S&P AA-
Swiss Re Life and Health (Austratia) Limited S&P AA- S&P AA-
Munich Remnsurance Company of Australasia Limited S&P AA- S&P AA-
Lloyd's S&P A+ S&P A+
AlA Remnsurance Limited S&P AA- SEP AA-

Al
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31 Disaggregated Informatlon

o iesl o statutory Fund T et Other Fund
SN e U Life Insurance: Life Investment 0 o T
$ millians© " contracts ' . contracts . .. Total .. - Total - -,

NZ IFRS 4 requires a life insurer to disclose disaggregated information for each hfe fund, as defined in the solvency standards under
IPSA. Disaggregated nformation for major compenents of the Group's Iife funds are presented in the tables below.

For the year ended 31 December 2019

Premium revenue

Investment revenue

Claims expense

Cther operating expenses

Investrnent revenue paid or allocated to policyholders
Net profit before tax

Net profit after tax

Net distributions made from funds

For the slx months ended 31 December 2018

Premium revenue

Investment revenue

Claims expense

Cther operating expenses

Investment revenue paid or allocated to policyholders
Net profit before tax

Net profit after tax

Net distributions made from funds

As at 31 December 2015

Life insurance contract habilities/{assels)
Life investrent contract habiliies

Other liabiities

Retained losses directly attributable to
sharehoiders

Investment assets

Other assets

As at 31 December 2018

Life insurance contract liabilites/{assets)
Life investment contract liabities

Other liabilities

Retained losses directly attributable to
sharehoiders

invesiment Assets

Other Assets

642
121
349
298
83
45
14

(3

318

25
193
128

38
14
(462)

128

1,337

(232)
1,274
344

145

646

(250
1,279
(358)

122

121
12

678

582
90

644
243
349
305
204
57
20
)

319

193

132
(14)
42

(462)

128
678
1,338

(R29)
1,856
434

145
646
637

{245)
1,821
445
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31 Disaggregated Information (continued)

IPSA requires a Ife insurer to allocate the operating profit or loss of a statutory fund or a category of business of a statutory fund. The
regulations define two categories of business: participating business and non-participating business. AIA NZ classifies all its Iife
nsurance business as parbicipating business or non-participating business in order to ensure the appropriate aliocation of profit, as

shown below.
Statutory Fund Other Fund

Lie Insurance Life Investment
$ millions contracts confracts Total Total
For the year ended 31 December 2019
Participating net profit after tax 4 = 4 »
MNon-participating net profit after tax 10 & 16 2
Net profit allocated to shareholders 14 & 20 2
For the six months ended 31 December 2018
Participating net profit after tax 1 - 1
Non-participating net profit after tax 13 3 16 3
Net profit allocated to shareholders 14 3 7 8
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32 Risk Management Policies

Introduction

The Group Is exposed to risk through its financial assets, financial liabilihies, remsurance assets and Ife insurance contract liabilities. Risk
management policies focus on ensuring cash fiows fram assets are sufficient to fund obligations arising from kfe insurance and life
investment contracts. The primary risks are those of insurance, credit, market, iquidity, operational and strategic business risl.

The Group's risk function is the responsibility of the Chief Risk Officer {CRO), who reports to the Chief Executive Officer, The Group’s risk
management strategy 1s set by the Board through the BARC. This commitiee comprises members of the Board anc is chaired by an
independent member of the Board. The CRO is responsible for the implementation of the Group's risk management strategy and all
exeacutives have responsibility for the day to day management of risk across the Group.

The Group has management structures and information systems to manage ndividual nisks, has separated risk ntiation and monitoring
tasks where feasible, and subjects al! material systems Lo regular review. Periodic assessments of all risk management systems, key
brsiness processas and applications are undertaken by the internal audit function.

The Group conducts sensitivity analysts to quantify the exposure to risk of changes in the key underlying variables such as interest rates,
currency exchange rates, mortality, merbidity end inflation. The valuations ncluded in the reported resulls and the Group's best
astimate of fuiure performance are calculated using certain assumptions about thase variables. The movement in any key variable wil
impact the performance and net assets of the Group and as such represents a risk.

The sensitivity analysis in the risk categories that follow, 1s based on changes in econemic conditions that are considered reasonably
possible at the reporting date. The correlation of assumptions will have a significant effect in determining the uttimate profit impact, but
to demanstrate the impact of a specific assumption change, modelling had to be done on the basis that all other assumptions were held
constant.

The foliowing sections describe the risk management framework components:

Operational and Strateglc Business RIsk

Operational risk is defined as the risk of econcmic gain or less resuiting from inadeguate or failed internal processes and methodologies,
neople, systems or external events.

Strategic business risk s defined as the risk of economic gam or loss resulting from changes in the business environment causec by
economic, competitive, social trend or requlatory factors.

Each business manager 15 responsible for the dentification and assessment of these risks and for mamintaining appropriate internal
controls, and is supported by the Group's governance structures, operational risk management framawork and operational risk policies.
Business Continuity Management

Business Continuity Management (BCM) within the Greup involves the development, rmaintenance and testing of action plans to manage
business disruption risk. This ensures that business processes continue with minimal adverse impact on customers, staff, products,
services and brands.

BCM conshitutes an essential component of the Group's risk management process by providing a controlled response to petenbial
operational matters that could have & significant impact on the Group's critical processes and revenue streams. It includes both cost
affective responses to mitigate the impact of nisk events or disasters and crisis management plans to respond o crisis events.

A BCM programme including plan development, testing and education is in place across all divisions and incluces technology disaster
recovery plannng.

Internal Audit
The New Zealand Internal Audit function now reports to the AlA Group, Reqional Director in Hong Kong,

Internal audit provides an independent assurance service designed to assist the Group in achieving its objectives by bringing a
systematic and disciplined approach to improving the effectiveness of risk management systems, the framework of controls, and
governance processes. Operational, compliance, financial and systems reviews of the Group's operations are performed based on an
assessment of risk. The independent internal audit function is ultimately accouniable to the Board through the BARC,

The BARC meets an a regular basis to consider financiai reporting, internal control, and corporate governance issues. It reviews the
interim and annual hnancial statements, the activities of the interpal and external auditors, and monitors the relationship between
management and the external auditors.

Al
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32 Risk Management Pollcles {(continued)

Insurance Rlsk
Insurance risk 1s risk, other than financial risk, that 1s transferred from the holder of a contract fo the 1ssuer.

The Group's objechives in managing risks arising from insurance business are:

(i} To ensure insurance nsk is managed in accordance with the pringiples set out in the Risk Appetite Statement. The Risk Appetite
Staternent describes the Group's telerance and intolerance to key risks via a set of statements and principles.

(a3 Toensure that an appropriate return on capital is made in return for accepting insurance risk.

(i) To ensure that strong internal controls are embedded within the business to mitigate underwriting risk.

(v} To ensure that internal and external solvency and capital requirements are met.

{v) To usereinsurance as a component of Insurance risk management skrategy.

Variations in claim levels will affect reported profit and shareholder's equity. The impact may be magnified if the vanation leads to a
change in actuarial assumptions which cannot be absorbed within the present value of planned margins for a group of refated products,

Insurance risk may arise through the reassessment of the incidence of claims, the trend of future claims and the effect of unforeseen
disegses or epidemics. In addition, in the case of morbidity, the time o recovery may be longer than assumed. Insurance risk 15
confrolled by ensuring underwriting standards adeguately idenfify potential risk, retaining the right to amend premiums on risk policies
where appropriate and through the use of reinsurance. The experience of the Group's fe insurance business is reviewed regularly.

Cencentrations of mnsurance risk arise due to:

«  Large sums assured on certain ndmiduals.

. Gecgraphic concentrations due to employee group schemes. During the period ended 31 December 2019, AlA NZ participated in the
AlA Group catastrophe treaty which provides cover of USDS200 million for single event claims in excess of USDS25 millicn. In
addition, AlA NZ has in place a lower layer catastrophe treaty with AlA Reinsurance Limited which provides cover of USDS1S million
for a single event claims in excess of USDS10 millien.

e«  Geographic concentrations due to a pandermic affecting hives in a certain country or region. AIA NZ entered into a pandemic treaty
and has cover of NZD$40 mifiion pandemic reinsurance cover in excess of an Ultimate Net Loss of 016630% of the Mean Retained
net Amount at Risk, or NZD$83 millicn Ultimate Net Loss in the annusal aggregate for the applicable Agreement Year whichever the
greater.

Terms and conditlons of life Insurance contracts

The nature of terms of kfe insurance contracts written 1s such that certain external variables can be entified on which related cash
flows for claim payments depend. The table below provides an overview of these:

- o . g Key varlables that affect the
Detall of contract terms and Nature of compensation for timing and uncertalnty of future

Type of contract conditions claims - cash flows
Non-participating hife Benefits paid on death, il health or  Benefits, defined by the life - Mortality
insurance contracts with matunity that are fixed and insurance contract, are - Morbidity
fixed and guaranteed guaranteed and not &t the determinec by the centract and - Discontinuance rates
terms (term life and discretion of the issuer. Premiums  are not directly affected by the

disabifity, major medical} may be guaranteed through the Iife performance of underlying assets
of the contract, guaranteed for a or the performance of the
specified term or variable at the contracts as a whale.
insurer's discretion.

Life insurance contracts These policies include & clearly Benefits arising from the - Mortality

with discretionary defined initial guaranieed sum discretionary participation feature - Morbidity

parbicipating benefits assured which s payable on death  are based on the performance of - Market risk

(endowment and whole  The guaranteed amount 1s aspecified pool of contractsora - Discontinuance rates

of life) increased throughout the duration  specified type of contract. - Market returns on underiving assets

of the policy by the addition of
reguiar bonuses annually which,
once added, are not removed.
Benefits may also be augmented by
Capttal Growth Bonuses, which can
be added or removed at the
discretion of the company.

Life annuity contracts These policies provide guaranteed  The amount of the payment is set - Longevity
regular payments to the life at inception of the policy. - Market returns on underiying assets
assured.
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32 Risk Management Pollcles (continued)

Sensltivity to Insurance risk

Insurance risk is measured by using sensitivity analysis to show the effects on equity and prefit. The below sensitivities are calculated
hased on all other assumptions remaining unchanged.

Martality rates

For life iInsurance contracts, greater mortality rates would lead to higher levels of claims occurring soaner than anticipated, increasing
associated claims cost and therefore reducing profit and shareholder's equity. This is offset by increased annuitant mortality which
wauid reduce expected future annuity payments and therefore reduce life insurance contract liabilities.

Morbidity rates

The cost of health-related claims depends on bath the incidence of policyholders becarning 4l and the duration with which they remain
il Higher than expected incidence and duration would be likely to increase claim costs, reducing profit and shareholder's equity, For
disability Income claims i payment the deterioration by 10% refers to a reduction of 10% in the claim termination rate assumptions and
for Disability Income active lives the deterioration by 10% refers to an increase in expected claims cost of 10%.

Discontinuance

The impact of the discontinuance rate assumption depends on a range of factors including the type of contract, the surrender value
basis (where applicable} and the duration in force. For exarnple, an increase in discontinuance rates at earlier durations of life insurance
coniracts usually has a negative effect on performance and net assets. However, due o the interplay between the factors, there is not
always an adverse outcome to profits from an increase in discontinuance retes. There is an additional negative impact for a
deterioration in discontinuance rates due to the lapse penalty under a reinsurance treaty.

The table below llusirates the sensﬂnnty of reported net profit and loss after tax and equity to changes in insurance risk assumplions:

Chanqe ln followlnq tinanclal year's net proﬁt after tax and
R s -:shareholder's equltv “

r _As at31 December

2019 2018
Insurance risks
Before After Before After
relnsurance relnsurance reinsurance reinsurance

Mortalty Improvement by 10% 7 5 17 7

Detericration by 10% (23) (14) (22) (13
Marbidity Improvement by 10% 1 4 g 4

Deterioration by 10% (64) {56) (38) (33)
Discontinuance  Improvement by 20% 1 - S 1

Deterioration by 20% {13) (28) (12) (18)
Expenses Increase by 10% 3 (3) [&)] (3)

Decrease by 10% 2 2 3 3
Cradit Risk

Credit risk is the potential risk for ioss arising from failure of a counterpariy to meet their contractual obligations.

Credit risk principally arises within the Group from investments of shareholder funds or funds where the shareholder participates in
investment returns in cash and fixed interest securities, and rensurer payment obligations, Credit risk also arises from loans to agents,
foreign currency contracts, and frade receivables. No coltateral exists for any of the securilies held by the Group. The maximum credit
risk associated with each class of recognised financial asset held by the Group is the carrying value, The Group has & credit policy that
covers the approval and management of all credit risk.

Investment concentrations for sharehoider funds are managed within established guidelines and kmis set by the Investment
Committee {(IC). Some criteria are referred to the board for approval. Guidelines and limits are set for security credit ratings and
aggrecate exposure to any single geographic regicn or counterparty as docurmented within the investment management agreement.

Reinsurance is entered into for the purpose of risk transfer, The ¢redit risk inherent in reinsurance arrangsments 15 managed by
establishing minrmum credit standards for reinsurers,

For investment Iinked contracts the investment credit risk is appropriate for each particular product and the risk is borne by the
policyholder. There is no significant credit risk assurned by the Group. The impact on the fair value of life invesiment contract habilities
due to changes in credit risk is nil (31 Decernber 2C18 nif), except to the extent that the merket value of securities backing life investment
contract liabiities is affected by changes in credit risk. Any such credit risk impact 1s reflected in the movement of securities balances
during the year.

The credit ratings of counterparties are disclosed in note 30,
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Liguldity Risk

Liguidity risk is the nisk that an entity will encounter difficully in meeting obligations assocated with financial liabilities that are settled by
delivering cash or another financial asset.

Management of figuidity risk is designed to ensure that the Group has the ability to meet its financial cbligations as they fall due. The
Group manages this risk by holding a pool of readily tradable investment assets and deposits on call.

The maturity of ife insurance and hfe investment contract habilities are disclosed in notes 18 and 34 respectively.

Market Risk
Market risk 1s the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market prices,

Market risk arises from the mismatch between assets and liabiiities. The Group is exposed to market risk on diverse financial instruments
ncluding interest bearing assets, foreign currency investments, equities, and derivative mstruments. For each distinet category of
liabilities, a separate portfoho of assets 1s maintained and mvestment mandates are set that are appropriate for each.

A significant preportion of assets are hetd for invesiment {inked policies where market risk is transferred to the policyholder  The Group
earns fees on investment linked policies that are based on the amount of assets invested and it may receive lower fees should markets
fall, Asset allocation for mvestment linked policies s decided in accordance with the policyholders' fund selections.

Market risk arises on discretionary participation business as these contracts have investment guarantees. Risk is ritigated by using an
appropriate bonus / credit rate policy and a suitable growth / income investment allocation.

Market risk arises from returns obtained from investing the shareholders' funds heid in the Group. Appropriate investment mandates are
sef by the IC for the investment of shareholders’ funds. As at 31 December 2015, shareholders' funds in the Group were invested 0% (31
December 2018 3%) i growth assets {equity and preperty) and 100% (31 December 2018 97%) in mcome assels (cash and fixed
nterest).

Market risk comprises three types of risk: currency risk, interest rate risk and price risk.

() Currency RIsk

Currency risk 15 the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial nstrument will fluctuate because of changes n foreign
currency rates.

The Group does not fully hedge foreign currency denominated eqguity instruments. Adverse movements in currency rates relating to the
New Zealand dollar will subsequently reduce the value of policyholder assets and liabilities

The Group uses foreign currency forward contracts to mitigate its exposure to currency risk from forewgn currency denommated
investments. Global equity 15 hedged within the Collective investment Vehicle (CIV). The hedge ratic benchmark for Global Equities in the
ClV 15 100%. All other equity and property mnvestments dencminated in foreign currency have a weighted average hedging ratio of
62.5% (31 December 2018 68%:) and fixed mterest nvestments denominated in a foreign currency have a hedging ratic of 100% (31
December 2018 100%). All investments denominated in emerging market currencies are unhedged.

(i) Interest Rate Risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument wilt fluctuate because of changes in market
interest rates,

Farr value interest rate risk arises from the potential for a change in interest rates to cause a fluciuation in the fair valve of financial
nstruments and the value of lIife nsurance contract habihties. Interest rate risk arises from the structure and characteristics of the
Group's assets, liabitities and equity, and the mismatch in cash flows of its assets and liabilities, The objective is fo manage the interest
rate rnisk to achieve siable and sustainable nef profit.

For fixed interest investments held fo match fixed interest style products selected by pelicyhelders, the interest rate risk s borne by the
policyholder

Interest rate risk also anises ¢n nsk contracts where negative policy tiabilities (arising from the deferral of acquisition costs) are valued at
current risk-free nterest rates.

Cash flow interest rate risk s the potential for a change n interest rates to change interest expense and interest income in the current
year and in future years.

The Group reduces Interest rate risk by seelking to match the cash flows of assets and labihities.
Depending on the profile of the investment portfolio, the nvestment ncome of the Group will decrease as interest rates decrease. This

may be offset to an extent by changes in the market value of fixed interest investments. The impact on profit and shareholder's equity
depends on the refatve profies of assets and liabilities, to the extent that these are not matched.
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(1)

a3

“$ millions

Market Risk (continued)

Price Risk

Price risk Is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of & financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market prices
(other than those arising from interest rate risk or currency risk), whether those changes are caused by factors speaific to the individual
financial instrument or its issuer, or by facters affecting ali simiar financial instruments traded in the market.

This risk 1s managed by ensuring a diverse range of investments, fimits on counterparty exposure and restrictions on types of
instruments.

Equity Prices

For Ife investment contracts and life insurance contracts with discretionary participation features, abilities depend on the value of
underiying assets. Equity price risk may be entirely borne by pelicyholders. However, the Group derives fee income based on the value of
the underlying funds, hence revenues are always sensitive to changes in market value. For assels which are not contractually inked to
policy lighilbies, the Group is exposed to equity price risk,

Sensitivity to market risk

Market risk 1s measured by using sensitivity analysis to model changes in interest rates, eguity values and foreign currency rates.
The table below Hustrates the sensitivity of reportad profit and Joss after tax and equity te changes in market risk assumptions:

" ... Change In following financlal year's profit after tax and shareholders’ equity

As at 31 December . 2619 " ¢ 2018

Market risks

Equity prices  Favourable by 10% 1 2
Adverse by 10% 4)] (2)

Interest rates  Increase of 100 bps (6) (3)
Decrease of 100 bps (1N (&)

The negative impact of a decrease of 100bps in interest rates 1s primarily associated with participating products with guaranteed
benefits.

Derivative Financial instruments

The Group enters into derwvative transactions which provide economic hedges for risk exposures bul do not meet the accounting
requirements for hedge accounting treatment. The Group enters into fereign currency forward conlracts as economic hedges to
manage currency risk (refer note 1(F)). Gains or losses on the forward contracts have been recorded i mvesiment income with the gains
or losses on the investments they have hedged.

The forward currency contracts taken out do not exceed three months. At balance date these contracts have varying maturity dates.
Face and Fair Values

The face value is the contractual amount of the derivatives and provides a basis for comparison with instruments recognised in the
Statement of Financial Position. This amount is not exchanged and does not indicate the Group's exposure to credit risk. The amount
predominantly acts as a reference value upon which the net settlernents can be caicuiated and on which revaluation is based. The face
value of derivative financial instruments on hand, the favourable or unfavourable market values of these instruments, and the
censequent aggregate fair values of derivative financial assets and hiabilibies can fluctuate significantly from time to time.

Al

Pwe
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a5

Derivative FInanclal Instruments (continued)

The fair values of derivative financial instruments held are set out in the foliowing table:
$ millions

As at 31 December

Financlal Instruments subject to enforceable master netting agreements

Forward contract assets

Total derivative financlat assets
Forward contract liabilities

Total derivative financlal Habiitles

Total net derivative financlal Instruments

The Group dees not have any collateral arrangements in relation to these financial instruments,
Currency contracts face value

Forward contract assets
Forward contract labilities

Maturity Analysis of Financlal Liablifltles
CReg

Within 6

o 6e12
“‘Months " Months '

. Demand

$millions :
As at 31 December 2019

Non-derlvatlve flnanclal llabllities

2019 2018
9 4
g 4
= (2)
- (2)
9 2
251 129
4 41

Trade and other payables 23 17 = 1 2 2 145 145
Life investment contracts 677 - M - = = 677 678
Lease liabilitiies = 2 2 5 15 5 29 29
700 119 2 6 17 f 851 852
As at 31 December 2018
Non-derlvatlve flnanclal llabllitles
Trade and other payabies 16 a5 s 1 2 2 s 116
Life investment contracts 644 - % 644 646
660 95 » 1 2 2 760 762
Derlvative financlaf llabliitles
inflows from derivatives 4 = 141
Quiflows from derivatives = (143) = (143)
- (2) z 2 (2}

The above analysis is based on contractual undiscounted cash flows. Where the counterparty has discretion in requesting payment,
liabilities have been classified according to the earliest time period In which the Group may be required to pay. Refer o note 32 for

details of how the Group manages liguidity risk.

Funds Under Management and Administration

The Group manages and administers investment products that are closed to new business. As af 31 Decerber 2019, the Group had
$6385 million funds under management and administration (31 Decernber 2018 $644 mullion}. The Group utilises external fund managers

and investment consultants in the management of these funds.
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Commitments and Contingencles
Commitments under operating leases

The Group has adopted NZ iFRS 16 Leases from 1 January 2019, Refer to note 1 and note 26 for further details on the Group's lease
commitments.

Contingent Liabilities

The Group is subject to regulation from insurance, securities, capital markets, pension, data privacy and other requlators and is exposed to
the risk of regulatory actions in respeonse to perceived or actual non-compliance with regulations relating to suitabiiity, sales or underwriting
practices, claims payments and procedures, product design, disclesure, administration, denial or delay of benefits and breaches of fiduciary
or other duties. The Group believes that these matters have been adequately provided for in these financial statements.

The Group is exposed to iegal proceedings, complaints and other actions from its activities including those arising frem commercial
activities, sales practices, suitability of products, policies and claims. The Group believes that these matters are adequately provided for in
these financial statements.

There are no gther known material contingent liakilities at reporting date (3i Decemnber 2Ci8 nil).

Events after the Reporting Perlod

Effective 1 January 202C, a portfolio transfer occurred which moved all of the insurance busingss of the Branch, inciuding the statutery
fund assets and any related assets and liabilities to the Group. The portfolio transfer alse moved all the Branch non-insurance related
assets and liabilities to other New Zealand Group companies. The Branch fixed assets were moved to Westside Properties Limited and other
non-insurance related assets and lisbilities were moved to AlA Services New Zealand Limited. Consideration paid for all assets and liabilities
was based on audited Branch net asset valuas as at 31 December 2019.

Following completion of the portfolio transfer, the Group's net asset position increased to 3451 million and the tctal solvency margin
improved to $216 million. Further details of the solvency position after portfolio transfer is presented in the table below.

As at 1 January 2020

Actual selvency capital 251 160 41
Minimum solvency capital 52 143 185
Solvency margln 199 17 216
Solvency ratlo A481% 2% 21186

Fellowing consideration of related product groups (RPG) management will change RPGs used for financial reporting and solvency during
2020, The revised RPGs may change the solvency position of AlA NZ, following the portfolio transfer.

Subsequent to year-end, the Reserve Bank of New Zealand (RBNZ)} has completed a review of insurance companies that are exposed to the
risk of falling interest rates. As a result of this review, the RBNZ advised on 16 March 2020 that, effective 31 March 2020, the Company’s
licence condition will be modified by means of a phased approach, which increases the minimum solvency margin fo be maintained in the
statutory fund. This may have an impact on the future financial position of the Company. The impact is vet to be guantified and the
Company is working through its response.

There were no other events subsequent to the reporting pericd which would materially affect the financial statements.
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Independent auditor’s report
To the shareholder of AIA New Zealand Limited

We have audited the financial statements which comprise:

e the statement of financial position as at 31 December 2019;

e the income statement for the year then ended;

e the statement of comprehensive income for the year then ended;

e the statement of changes in equity for the year then ended;

e the statement of cash flows for the year then ended; and

¢ the notes to the financial statements, which include a statement of significant accounting policies.

Our opinion

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements of AIA New Zealand Limited (the Company),
including its subsidiaries (the Group), present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of
the Group as at 31 December 2019, its financial performance and its cash flows for the year then ended
in accordance with New Zealand Equivalents to International Financial Reporting Standards (NZ
IFRS) and International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS).

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (New Zealand) (ISAs
NZ) and International Standards on Auditing (ISAs). Our responsibilities under those standards are
further described in the Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements section of
our report.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our opinion.

We are independent of the Group in accordance with Professional and Ethical Standard 1 (Revised)
Code of Ethics for Assurance Practitioners (PES 1) issued by the New Zealand Auditing and Assurance
Standards Board and the International Ethics Standards Board for Accountants’ Code of Ethics for
Professional Accountants (IESBA Code), and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in
accordance with these requirements.

Our firm carries out other services for the Group in the areas of a reasonable assurance engagement
over the solvency return, a readiness assessment of internal control over financial reporting and an
assessment of the controls and processes supporting the implementation of an Enterprise Data
Warehouse. The provision of these other services has not impaired our independence as auditor of the
Group. In addition, certain partners and employees of our firm may deal with the Group on normal
terms within the ordinary course of trading activities of the Group.

PricewaterhouseCoopers, 188 Quay Street, Private Bag 92162, Auckland 1142, New Zealand
T: +64 (9) 355 8000, F: +64 (9) 355 8001, www.pwc.com/nz
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Our audit approach
Overview

An audit is designed to obtain reasonable assurance whether the financial
statements are free from material misstatement.

Overall Group materiality: $7.4 million, which represents approximately 1%
of total premium revenue for the year then ended.

Materiality We chose total premium revenue because, in our view, it is a key financial
statement metric used in assessing the performance of the Group and is not
as volatile as other profit or loss measures, and is a generally accepted

Audit scape benchmark for life insurers. The 1% is based on our professional judgement,
noting that it is also within the range of commonly accepted revenue related

thresholds.

We have determined that there are two key audit matters:

e Measurement of life insurance contract liabilities and associated
liabilities ceded under and arising from reinsurance

e Operation of financial reporting Information Technology (IT) systems
and controls

Materiality
The scope of our audit was influenced by our application of materiality.

Based on our professional judgement, we determined certain quantitative thresholds for materiality,
including the overall Group materiality for the financial statements as a whole as set out above. These,
together with qualitative considerations, helped us to determine the scope of our audit, the nature,
timing and extent of our audit procedures and to evaluate the effect of misstatements, both
individually and in aggregate on the consolidated financial statements as a whole.

Audit scope

We designed our audit by assessing the risks of material misstatement in the financial statements and
our application of materiality. As in all of our audits, we also addressed the risk of management
override of internal controls including among other matters, consideration of whether there was
evidence of bias that represented a risk of material misstatement due to fraud.

We tailored the scope of our audit in order to perform sufficient work to enable us to provide an
opinion on the consolidated financial statements as a whole, taking into account the structure of the
Group, the accounting processes and controls, and the industry in which the Group operates.

Key audit matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in
our audit of the financial statements for the current year. These matters were addressed in the context
of our audit of the financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not
provide a separate opinion on these matters.
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Key audit matter How our audit addressed the key audit matter

Measurement of Life insurance contract liabilities and associated liabilities ceded under and
arising from reinsurance

As at 31 December 2019 the Group has life  Together with PwC actuarial experts, we:

insurance contract liabilities of -$4 million
(asset) (31 December 2018: $26 million),
liabilities ceded under reinsurance of $43
million (31 December 2018: $33 million)
and liabilities arising from reinsurance
contracts of $668 million (31 December
2018: $708 million).

The Directors’ valuation of these balances
involves complex and subjective
judgements about future events, both
internal and external to the business, for
which small changes in assumptions can
result in a material impact to the
measurement of these balances.

We considered this a key audit matter due
to the subjective judgements made by the
Directors around the key actuarial
assumptions used in determining these
balances. These represent best estimate
assumptions at reporting date and
include:

e Expected amount, timing and
duration of all expected future
payments and premiums, likely rates
of discontinuance, mortality and
morbidity rates, investment and
maintenance expenses; and

¢ Long term economic assumptions
including discount rates and inflation
rate.

Further, the Directors perform a liability
adequacy test (for traditional participating
business) to ensure that any deficiency in
the measurement of life insurance
contract liabilities are appropriately
recognised at the reporting date. This
involves a comparison of the amount of
life insurance contract liabilities against
the estimated future cash flows calculated
based on best estimate assumptions. Any
deficiencies in the measurement of life
insurance contract liabilities are
recognised through the statement of
comprehensive income.

Assessed the reasonableness of the key
assumptions including those for rates of
discontinuance, mortality and morbidity rates,
investment and maintenance expenses, discount
and inflation rate. Our assessment of the
assumptions included:

o Obtaining an understanding of, and testing,
the processes and controls in place to
determine the assumptions;

o Examining the approach used by management
to derive the assumptions by applying our
industry knowledge and experience; and

o Comparing the key assumptions used by
management against past experience, market
observable data (as applicable) and our
experience of market practice.

Assessed the reasonableness of the analysis of
profit to consider whether assumption changes are
consistent with experience and whether the
movement in the life insurance contract liabilities
and associated liabilities ceded under and arising
from reinsurance from the prior reporting period
have been adequately explained.

Assessed the valuation methodologies used by
applying our industry knowledge and experience to
compare whether the methodologies and changes
to those are consistent with recognised actuarial
practices and expectations derived from market
experience.

Checked the calculation of the liability adequacy
test and assessed the outcome in order to ascertain
whether the life insurance contract liabilities are
adequate in the context of a valuation on best
estimate assumptions at reporting date.

Policy data is a key input to the actuarial estimates.
Accordingly, we:

Evaluated the design effectiveness and tested the
operating effectiveness of controls over
underwriting and policy administration processes;

Tested the completeness and accuracy of data
between source and actuarial valuation systems;
and
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Key audit matter How our audit addressed the key audit matter

Refer to the following notes in the o Assessed premiums received during the year

financial statements: Note 1(k) for related through substantive analytics by developing an

accounting policies, Note 1 for critical expectation using the industry average growth rate

accounting estimates and judgements, in premium revenue, comparing against the

Note 2 and Note 18. Group’s actual premium received for the year and
investigating any significant fluctuation above our
acceptable threshold.

We have no matters to report from the procedures
performed.

Operation of financial reporting Information Technology (IT) systems and controls

We focused on this area because the Our procedures included evaluating and testing the
Group’s operations and financial design and operating effectiveness of certain controls
reporting processes are heavily dependent  over the continued integrity of the IT systems that are
on IT systems, including automated relevant to financial reporting,.

accounting procedures, IT dependent
manual controls and controls preventing
unauthorised access to systems and data.

We also carried out direct tests, on a sample basis, of
system functionality that was key to our audit testing in
order to assess the accuracy of certain system

The Group’s controls over IT systems calculations, the generation of certain reports and the
include: operation of certain system enforced access controls.

e The framework of governance over IT  When we noted design or operating effectiveness
systems; matters relating to IT systems and application controls
relevant to our audit, we performed alternative or
additional audit procedures. This involves a
e  Access to process, data and IT combination of the following procedures:
operations; and

e Program development and changes;

e Testing mitigating controls;
e Governance over generic and

privileged user accounts e Investigating to determine that the exception has

not been exploited;

e Validating the appropriateness of transactions
associated with the identified exception;

¢ Determining whether key programs have changed
during the period under audit; and

¢ Increasing sample sizes for our substantive test of
details for the relevant attributes.

Information other than the financial statements and auditor’s report

The Directors are responsible for the annual report. Our opinion on the financial statements does not
cover the other information included in the annual report and we do not, and will not express any form
of assurance conclusion on the other information.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with
the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit, or otherwise appears to be materially
misstated. If, based on the work we have performed on the other information that we obtained prior to
the date of this auditor’s report, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other
information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.
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Responsibilities of the Directors for the financial statements

The Directors are responsible, on behalf of the Company, for the preparation and fair presentation of
the financial statements in accordance with NZ IFRS and IFRS, and for such internal control as the
Directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the Directors are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the
going concern basis of accounting unless the Directors either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease
operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements, as a whole,
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report
that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee
that an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs (NZ) and ISAs will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material
if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic
decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

A further description of our responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements is located at the
External Reporting Board’s website at:
https://www.xrb.govt.nz/standards-for-assurance-practitioners/auditors-responsibilities/audit-
report-1/

This description forms part of our auditor’s report.

Who we report to

This report is made solely to the Company’s shareholder. Our audit work has been undertaken so that
we might state those matters which we are required to state to them in an auditor’s report and for no
other purpose. To the fullest extent permitted by law, we do not accept or assume responsibility to
anyone other than the Company and the Company’s shareholder, for our audit work, for this report or
for the opinions we have formed.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent auditor’s report is Karl Deutschle.

For and on behalf of:

QW\’&LOMJDJ@A

Chartered Accountants Auckland
17 March 2020



Appointed Actuary’s Report
To the Directors of AlA New Zealand Limited

This Appointed Actuary’s report under Section 78 of the Insurance (Prudential
Supervision) Act 2010 (the Act) is prepared in respect of the financial statements of
AlA New Zealand Limited (AlA NZ) for the 12 month period ended 31 December
2019.

| have undertaken a review of the actuarial information (as defined in section 77(4) of
the Act) contained in, and used in the preparation of, the financial statements of AlA
NZ (the Financial Statements) as required under section 77(1) of the Act.

My review has been carried out in accordance with the Solvency Standard for Life
Insurance Businesses issued by the Reserve Bank of New Zealand under section 55
of the Act (the Life Solvency Standard) and with the New Zealand Society of
Actuaries' Professional Standards.

In respect of my review, | confirm as follows:

{a) |, Marco Welgemoed FNZSA, am the appointed actuary for AIA NZ under
section 76(1) of the Act, and that | have prepared this report.

(b} The work that | have done to review the actuarial information contained in, or
used in the preparation of the Financial Statements, includes a review of:

(iy information relating to AlA NZ's calculations of premiums, claims,
reserves, dividends, insurance and annuity rates, and technical
provisions;

(i) information relating to assessments of the probability of uncertain future
events occurring and the financial implications for AIA NZ if those events
do occur;

(i) AlIA NZ's Policy Liability, as defined in the Life Solvency Standard;

(iv) reinsurance and other recovery assets relevant to the Policy Liability, or
relevant to outstanding claims reserves incurred but not reported claims
reserves held outside of the Policy Liability;

(v) any deferred or other tax asset relevant to the Policy Liability;

(vi) any deferred acquisition cost or deferred fee revenue relevant to the
Policy Liability;

(vii) the unvested policyholder benefits liability;

(viil) the crediting and bonus rates used for participating and investment
account contracts;

(ix) the analysis of AlA NZ's profit and the movement in the solvency margin;

(x) the sensitivity of AIA NZ's profit to changes in insurance and market risk
assumptions;
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(xi) the assumptions used in the calculation of the Policy Liability and the
solvency margin and the impacts of changes in those assumptions;

(xii) the methodology used to calculate the Policy Liability and the Solvency
Margin;

(xiii) the consistency between the New Zealand Society of Actuaries
Professional Standard 20 “Determination of Life Insurance Policy
Liabilities”, AIA NZ's valuation methodology document, and the calculated
Policy Liability; and

(xiv) AIA NZ's checks and controls over data, valuation and solvency
calculation processes.

(c) | am an employee of AIA Services New Zealand Limited, a subsidiary of AIA
NZ. | do not have any other relationship with, or interests in, AIA NZ or any of
its subsidiaries apart from holding retail risk insurance policies.

(d) | have obtained all information and explanations that | have required in order to
conduct my review under section 77 of the Act.

(e) | consider that in my opinion and from an actuarial perspective:

() the actuarial information contained in the Financial Statements has been
appropriately included in those Financial Statements; and

(i)  the actuarial information used in the preparation of the Financial
Statements has been used appropriately.

(f) 1 consider that in my opinion and from an actuarial perspective AIA NZ, as at 31
December 2019, is maintaining a solvency margin that complies with that
required under the Life Solvency Standard for the purposes of section 21(2)(b)
of the Act.

(g) | consider that in my opinion, and from an actuarial perspective and as at 31
December 2019, AlA NZ is maintaining sclvency margins that comply with
those required under the Life Solvency Standard for the purposes of section
21(2)(c) of the Act.

| have prepared, dated and signed this report solely in my capacity as AlA NZ's
appointed actuary under section 76(1) of the Act. To the fullest extent permitted by

law, | do not accept responsibility to anyone other than the Reserve Bank of New
Zealand, AlA NZ, its Board and shareholder for the contents of this report.

g

Dated [ /3 /20’2,0

Marco Welgemoed
Appointed Actuary

Auckland

Page 2 of 2



